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Hornby PLC

The Group's principal business is the development, production
and supply of toy and hobby products for a global market,
through a series of heritage brands. The Group disfributes
its products through a network of hobby specialists, multiple
retailers and its own website in the UK and overseas.
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Highlights 2021

“Much of my time at Hornby has been about the turnaround and laying down
the foundations for the future. In this last year we have returned to profit,
the foundations have now been laid and we are excited with the opportunities
that lie ahead. | cannot thank our employees enough for their commitment
and strength as they battled through the last year.”

Lyndon Davies, Chief Executive

Revenue
(2020: £37.8m)

£48.5m

Operating profit
(2020: £(2.8)m loss)

£0.6m

Reported profit before taxation
(2020: £(3.4)m loss)

£0.3m

Underlying' profit before taxation
(2020: £(3.2)m loss)

£1.5m

Reported profit after taxation
(2020: £(3.4)m loss)

£1.4m

Reported profit per share
(2020: (2.67)p loss)

Underlying? basic profit per share
(2020: (2.57)p basic loss)

Net cash
(2020: 5.9m) (see Note 28)

£4.7m

1 Underlying profit before taxation is before amortisation of infangibles (brand names and customer lisfs), and net unrealised foreign exchange movements on infercompany loans,

exceptional items and share-based payments (see page 11).

2 Underlying basic profit per share is before amortisation of intangibles (brand names and customer lists), and net unrealised foreign exchange movements on intercompany loans,

exceptional ifems and share-based payments (see Note 7).
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Non-Executive Chairman’s Report

| am pleased report to shareholders that
despiTe the many challenges, our Company
had a very satisfactory year and returned
to profit.

Revenue in the year of £48.5 million (2020:

£37.8 million) was 28% above the previous
year. Underlying profit before tax increased
significantly to £1.5 million (2020: £3.2
million loss). Reported profit before tax
increased to £0.3 million (2020: £(3.4)
million] as we confinue fo implement our
furnaround strategy. Despite the many
challenges to the Company caused by
COVID-19 the old adage that people tum
fo hobbies in times of recession proved
correct and sales increased across almost

all channels and brands except concessions
that were closed due to lockdowns for the
majority of the year.

In the year we have made further
considerable progress within the Group.
We continue fo maintain market prices
and again the gross margin has improved.
Following the review of our cusfomer base,
trading terms have been aligned fo the
collaborative support provided. The new
product development cycle is now
established and we have already started
work on the development of 2023 product
ranges. New product investment continues
fo increase and we are developing
significantly more new releases and

ranges. We have contfinued fo develop
opportunities in existing ranges to
incorporate fechnology such as wireless
vehicle control from a smart phone

in both Hornby and Scalextric.

Overheads have increased by 8% mainly
due to sales volume related costs such

as dispafch costs, digital marketing spend
and commissions.
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COVID-19
COVID-19 has impacted the Group this

year. Our main priorifies are to keep our
employees safe and protect the Group to
survive the crisis. All our offices in Europe,
Hong Kong and America formulated
lockdown plans that were implemented in
line with the relevant government policies.
UK staff vacated the Margate offices almost
immediately after the announcement of the
lockdown on 23 March 2020 and the
majority of staff were able to work from
home. After some false starts staff have
been gradually returning fo the office on at
least a parttime basis since January 2021.
I would again like fo thank the incredible
efforts of all employees to implement the
change which involved insfalling significant
IT. infrastructure to facilitate home working
and subsequently juggling the complications
of combining home and work commitments.
Everyone has confinued to work very
efficiently and incredibly hard in this new
environment and maintained their
enthusiasm and good spirits. A limited
number of employees were furloughed
where their function was temporarily
curtailed or not possible to be fulfilled at
home but all have now returned fo work.

Our supply partners are mainly located in
the Far East. Whilst manufacturing was
greatly affected by COVID-19 and the,
much publicised, delays caused by shipping
container shortages, they have managed fo
satisfy the majority of our requirements.

Forfunately, a proportion of our product
sales were already via e-commerce and

we have been able to strengthen the
channel as our logistic facility has remained
operational under strict distancing

profocols and we continue to dispatch
goods. Similarly, our retail customers have
implemented e-commerce systems and were
better prepared fo trade in later lockdowns.

GOVERNANCE

Good corporate governance provides

a framework for delivering the obijectives
of the Company and is fundamental o a
sound decision making process. It supports
the executive management to control and
achieve the maximum performance of the
Company. | am pleased to report that the
Board believes it applies the ten principles
of the Quoted Companies Alliance Code.
In the current uncertain economic and
political period, management of risks
remains a key focus for the Board. The
Board has in place a robust process for
identifying the major risks facing the
business and for developing appropriate
polices to manage those risks. The Board
reviews those risks on an annual basis
carrying out regular reviews and annual
updates on our compliance with the
QCA Code.

BREXIT

At the eleventh hour a Brexit trade deal was
reached with the EU. Nevertheless countless
importation difficulties to the EU arose
which have taken time to resolve. We have
migrated fo a multi-carrier inferface which

is now fully implemented and operational
but fourth quarter sales into Europe

were affected.

SHAREHOLDERS

We will hold our Annual General Meeting
on Wednesday 15th September and will
provide further details nearer the fime.

John Stansfield
Chairman
Q June 2021
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CEO’s Statement

INTRODUCTION

As we enfered the last quarter of the
2019/20 financial year, we expected Brexit
to dominate the landscape. We were
looking forward fo the first wave of new
products that we had been working on
over the previous two years. We expecfed
them to make an impact on our frading
performance. Like everyone else we were
unprepared for the pandemic, and we
found ourselves continually revaluating our
operations, the frading landscape and just
frying to keep the business funcfioning.

Our new items were well-received and the
chonging \ondscope meant that many found
comfort in our products. We gained a lot of
new cusfomers, and our existing customers
spent more on the hobbies they enjoy.
Hornby retumed to profit, following a trend
of improved performance over the last few
years, and the turnaround accelerated.

The points | will cover in my statement are
as follows:

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

Variable costs, fixed costs, gross profit and
operafing profit.

Key Performance Indicator 1: Costs

How and why our cost levels are what they
are.

Key Performance Indicator 2: Capital
Expenditure Productivity

Gross profit in relation to essential capital
expenditure.

Key Performance Indicator 3: Inventory
The importance of the inventory balance in
relation fo sales.

The Global Pandemic

Our actions and responses fo COVID-19
over the financial year.

Brexit

How it has impacted our business.

Staff Profit Share Scheme

Return to profif means our emp|oyees
benefit.

Our Employees

Current Trading & Outlook

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

We think about our business in terms of
fixed costs and variable costs, you will find
these in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (SOCI) on page 33.

When we sell our products there are
variable costs, which are directly related to
individual items. This includes such elements
as the materials used to make the products
and the cosfs which our manufacturers
charge us fo turn the raw materials info

a railway locomotive, a plastic kit, a tub
of paint, a diecast car or any number of
other complex end products. These costs
are variable because they vary with how
many products we sell and how we gef
our products to our end customers. You will
see these described in “Cost of Sales” in
the SOCI.

Our fixed costs are not completely fixed in
the academic definition, but I think of them
as all the overheads we need fo get our
product to market in the right way. As well
as the normal things like wages for the
finance team or the electricity bill for the
headquarters, these fixed costs include such
items as the cost of sending samples to
magazines and influencers. In the SOCI
you will find these fixed costs under the
headings “Distribution costs, Selling &
Marketing, Administrative and Other”.
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In 2021, we generated enough gross profit to cover our fixed costs for the first time in many years.

2021 2020 2019 2018
(£7000) (£000) (£7000) £000
Sales 48,549 37,842 32,759 35,651
“%‘r'ﬁ‘oble Co;; """""""""""""""" (26,795) 't21,140) '(‘19,348)”“ o ."(21900)
Gross Poft 21,754 "16,702 "]3,411 13,751
F|><ed Costs (20,976) h 9,444) 'tl 8,041)"“ - ."(21,329)
.6ééroﬁng PFJif/(Loss) """"""""""""""" /78 H (2,742) "(4,630)'“ - (7,578)

some fo accept this change, but we must
adapt for the turnaround to prove successful.
This will cause a disruption to a small
number of our refailers, but not those that
support the hobby, our brands, and the end
cusfomers of our products. The result of this
change (including a new fier system that has
been implemented for retailers) is that
Hornby can better serve our customers and
the business can move fo a more
sustainable footing that clearly benefits the
whole industry.

When you subtract our fixed costs away
from the Gross Profit, you gef the Operating
Profit [or Loss). Our shareholders have for
many years had to pay for losses, but in the
financial year ending 2021 we made a
profit of £778,000. We must now ensure
that this is sustainable and growing. We will
achieve this by improving our KPls.

KPI NO. 1: COSTS

An important element of the turnaround was
fo reduce both the fixed costs and variable

costs as a percentage of our sales. Selling direct has different economics to

selling fo trade. Selling direct will result in
higher revenue from the same volume of
goods sold. Therefore, a shift fo this channel
will positively impact the denominator in
both the variable cost ratio and the fixed
cost ratio reported below. However, cerfain

We obsess about our customers and we
want fo do more of the things that delight
them. Therefore, we will rely less on
channels that don't bring value to them or
the hobby. There will be a reluctance from

Here is a graph which shows our variable costs as a percentage of sales since 2001:

Variable Costs as a Percentage of Sales

costs are higher when fulfilling direct
orders from our websites. We have

higher expenditures on logistics, fulfillment,
marketing, customer services and
technology. These will negatively impact
the numerator in the rafios reported below.

Variable Costs

These have reduced further, but | would
have liked to have seen a few more
percentage point drops, but difficult trading
conditions meant that we incurred more
costs than | had anticipated, parficularly
related to the imporfation of our products.

In late 2020 we benefited when the
automated packing machines went live
in our warehouse, further automation is

planned in 2021/22.

65%

60%
55%
50%
45%
40%

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
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CEO’s Statement continued

Fixed Costs

In the lost Annual Report, | reported that our current fixed cost base could service a business bringing in £45m to £50m of sales. | am now of the
belief that the service base we currently have could support £50m fo £55m. We need to get the fixed cosfs as a percentage of sales below 40%.

Here is a graph o show how our fixed costs have varied as a percentage of sales since 2001:

Fixed Costs as a Percentage of Sales
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Our aim is o keep increasing revenues so
that the fixed cost percentage will be lower
with each subsequent report.

KPI NO. 2: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
PRODUCTIVITY

We need to invest in fooling to produce
new, innovative and exciting models. You
will find the money we put info these
endeavours in Note 10 of the financial
statements. Over the last three years we
have invested in engineering talent and
that means we can design more products.

2007

Gross Profit Per £ of Capital Expenditure

2009

~
o
N

2008
2010
2011
2012
2013

This year, we spent £4,124,000 on Product
Tooling, the highest level for over 10 years.
The imporfant thing to remember about this
capital expenditure is that the money we
spend in any given year is, roughly
speaking, used to manufacture tooling for
models and products that will be sold firsily
in the following year and then for several
more years. We thus have a time lag
between expenditure and revenue. The
increased expenditure now will have
positive impacts on the results for many
years to come.

v O N o] o o =
— — — — — ey o~
o O o o} o @) o
N ™~ N [ N N N

A good measure of how good a job we
are doing is to check the amount of Capex
we are incurring in one year and comparing
it fo the gross profit we are generafing in the
following year. If you divide the gross profit
generated in a year by the Capex in the
previous year, it will tell you how many
pounds of gross profit we generated per
pound of capital expenditure. The aim

is fo get this number as high as possible.
We call it “Capex Productivity”.

Gross Profit per £ of
Capital Expenditure

2001

DN
o
o
(oY

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

[ Gross Profit per € of Capital Expenditure = Gross Profit

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Gross Profit M

2020
2021

We expect the trend to keep improving for many years to come. Next year | will now sfart reporting on the Group return on investment KPI.
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KPI NO. 3: INVENTORY

Holding inventory in the market we serve is not a bad thing, without stocks in this last year we would have been unable fo support the sales
growth. Furthermore, for our websites fo become the go-to desfination for our customers we need to make sure we maintain stock availability.
Our systems for how we hold our stocks and the channels they support have changed in order to better balance how our products reach

our cusfomers.

Year End Inventory as a Percentage of Sales

40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006

Our yearend inventory balance relative
to our sales ended up lower than the
previous year.

It is very important that cash is nof tied up
unnecessarily in inventory, but on the other
hand recent events have shown us that sfock
support is imporfant fo cushion us in fimes

of crisis. Most of the products we produce,
with the exception of a few licensed
products, are not 'fashion accessories’ that
go out of style. With cautious commitments
fo production volumes slower moving items
will 0|W0ys sell Through evemuoHy‘

The Global Pandemic

The last year has been incredibly stressful
for many of our employees. As we entered
April 2020, we had all adapted to new
ways of working, which turned out to

be easier for some employees, but more
difficult for others. Throughout the year

my deep concern was about our employees
and the personal challenges that they
were facing. Equally it was essential to
navigate through and ensure that the
business survived to support our employees
and shareholders.

2007

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
20

Our online sales increased as much

of the population returned to hobbies

they had enjoyed in the pasf, where they
found comfort. We also found new people
who discovered what we had fo offer.
Despite the easing of lockdowns the
demand continues.

There are sfill shipping delays from our
supply chain with container shortages.
Shipping costs from our factories are three
times what they were previously. It would
appear that the shipping companies favour
these higher prices; they are in no rush for a
return fo past pricing levels. We anticipate
that some normality will return in 2022.

Brexit

In late 2020 Homby took a decision to stop
shipments to EU countries. This was in
anticipation of uncertainties in regard to
paperwork, interface concerns with our
logistic parters and a lack of information
about how each EU country would respond
at the point of enfry. In recent weeks
shipments have resumed, but there are sfill
delays in certain countries whose
procedures are unnecessarily rigid.

© N

o

2015
2020
2021

s}
o (@] o
N N Y N

Staff Profit Share Scheme

Our loyal employees believe in our business
and there are some wonderful products in
the pipeline. In November 2018 we
highlighted the issue that our staff below
Board level in the past had not received a
fair share of the rewards. VWe announced a
profit share scheme for all of our employees
who contribute to the success of our
business. | am delighted to announce that
our return to profit means the first part of this
scheme now kicks in, with a one-off 5%
bonus given to each employee, for getting
fo us back info profit. The second part of the
scheme shares 15% of the operating profit
with them as we move forward.

We want o atfract the best talent, keep that
talent and ensure that they are aligned with
our shareholders’ interests.

Our Employees

In this last year Homby has lost some
incredible employees; our employees have
also lost family members in the most tragic
of ways. | will never forgef them, Hornby
will never forget them.

Business is about great people, great
products and great relationships — the rest is
mist. | thank all of our wonderful employees
for their enthusiasm and backing over the last
year, they have supported me throughout.
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CEQO’s Statement continued

Current Trading & Outlook

It seems that the UK is emerging from the
worst of COVID-19 due to the vaccination
roll-out but the worldwide issues will
continue for some fime. We will remain alert
and flexible to react as necessary. The
fundamentals of the Company are strong
and | remain excited by our proposed
ranges in the coming years as we reap the
benefits of management'’s efforts 1o offer
spedocu\or new produds and Techmo\ogy
throughout the year fo continue the
turnaround of the Group.

Since the end of March, our sales have
been in line with expectations. The engine
at the heart of the Company is firing and
we anficipate a stronger demand for our
products, with more online direct sales.

We have a strong balance sheet with net
cash of £4,700,000 and we appreciate
the strong support from our cusfomers
and shareholders.

\

\«f\

Lyndon Davies
Chief Executive Officer
Q June 2021
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Section 172 Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

As required by Section 172 of the
Companies Act, a director of a company
must act in the way he or she considers, in
good faith, would likely promote the success
of the company for the benefit of the
shareholders. In doing so, the director must
have regard, amongst other matters, to the
following issues:

* likely consequences of any decisions in
the long term;

® interests of the company’s employees;

e need fo foster the company’s business
relationships with suppliers/customers
and others;

e impact of the company’s operations on
the community and environment;

e the company’s reputation for high
standards of business conduct; and

® need to act fairly between members of
the company.

CULTURE

Our values and leadership behaviours

are a vital part of our culture fo ensure that
through good governance, our conduct
and decision making we do the right thing
for the business and our stakeholders.

The Board acknowledges that every
decision it makes will not necessarily result
in a positive shortferm outcome for all

of the Group's stakeholders. We believe
in creating solid foundations for the future,
so there is a balance between short term
success and longerterm prosperity.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Board values the views of our
shareholders and recognises their inferest in
our sfrategy and performance. We endeavour
to update shareholders on the Board's
expectations for the outlook of the business
and as and when this changes. As much as
possible, we fry fo provide information that is
relevant to our shareholders on our corporate
website; in our Annual Report and Accounts;
and through regulatory news announcements
throughout the year.

We also believe in knowing and undersianding
our shareholders. VWe encourage our
shareholders to attend our Annual General
Meetings (AGMs) and we welcome questions
from them. At our AGMs, we provide the
platform for robust discussions with our
shareholders, during which the participants,
both Directors and shareholders alike, are
engaged with the proceedings. We believe
this reflects the connection fo the business which
we have cultivated and continue to cultivate in
our shareholders. In addition, the review of
investor relations activity and analysis of our
shareholder register is a standing itfem at each
Board meeting. Our corporate website
http://www.homby.plc.uk/ also includes
the outcomes of shareholder votes cast at
the AGMs, as well as Annual and Interim
Reports from previous years.

The primary mechanism for engaging with
our shareholders is through the Company’s
AGM and also through the publication of the
Group's financial results for the half year and

A

full year. Further information is disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages
14 1o 17. The Board reviews feedback
received from institutional investors following
publication of our financial results. At the
AGM we encourage our shareholders to ask
questions and participate in debate about our
performance and products. Last year, as we
held a closed meeting due to COVID-19
restrictions, we asked for questions to be
submitted prior fo the AGM and these
together with the Company's responses were
published on the Company’s website.

CUSTOMERS

Understanding our customers and what
matters fo them is key fo the success of
Hornby. We listen and talk to them using all
of the tools at our disposal. Our customers
operate in a global, but niche market, we
inferact with them either directly, or via our
retailers, wholesalers and distributors.

SUPPLIERS

We have long-standing close relationships
with our suppliers overseas, who we would
normally visit on a regular basis. During

the pandemic we have communicated via
video conferencing, working together

with a common goo\, giving them visibi\ity,
sharing our plans and allowing them to plan
their factories capacity well info the future.

EMPLOYEES

A key to the Group's renewed success has
been its engaged workforce. The Group's
Directors, alongside our executive management
teams, work hard to provide a positive working
environment. As a wellrespected local
employer within each of the communities
we operate, it is important for us fo provide
opportunities for all of our staff fo allow them to
grow and achieve their potential. More detail
can be found in Note 24.

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT

We are proud to employ people in the
communities that we operate. The strength

of our brands allows us to promote both local
and national charitable causes. We have
product standards, policies and guidance
covering the products we make to help ensure
that they are manufactured safely, legally

and fo the required quality standards.

Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 09

MBIAIBAQ

(%)
=
=
a
=l
)
@
2.
3
-]
o
-

9dUDUIBA0S

SJUBWIBINIS |PIdUDUIY



Operating and Financial Review of the Year

HORNBY-
=

pLAYIAINS .

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2021 2020
Revenue £48.5m £37.8m
Gossprofit $18n  £16.7m
G;crarsrsrbrrofit magin 449% : 44]%
Ovetheads £210m  £194m
Excepfionals £02m  £0.Im
Reported profit/{loss) before fax £03m  $B4m
Underlylng profif/“orsrsr)r Béfore tax* £1.5m 7 27(73.27)&1
Reported profit/[loss) after tax Sldm  £3.4m
Bééaé ﬁfofii/(\oss] prerrrsrﬁdrré 0.82p 7 ('2'467'"[3
Underlymg basic prrorfrﬁr/rlrlcr)rss) per share* 1.36p : (727.56|7p
Netcash $47m  £50m
Undrown facliies S144m  £142m

*

on intercompany loans, goodwill impairments and exceptional items.

Stated before amortisation of infangibles (brands and customer lists), net unrealised foreign exchange movements

PERFORMANCE ON
A STATUTORY BASIS

Consolidated revenue for the year ended 31
March 2021 was £48.5 million, an increase
of 28% compared o the previous year's
£37.8 million due to improved efficiency in
product development and supply chain. The
revenue in the second half of the year of
£27.4 million was ahead of previous year
which was £21.7 million. Gross profit margin
was slightly higher, at 44.9% (2020: 44.1%).

Overheads increased yearon-year by 8%
from £19.4 million to £21.0 million
predominantly as a result of planned
recruitment of additional heads and selling
related costs linked to higher revenues,
especially direct sales. UK distribution costs
increased by £1.0 million due to continued
increased delivery cosfs in line with increased
parcel volumes. Sales and markefing costs
decreased by £0.3 million yearon-year due
fo cost savings related to non-participation in
frade shows due to COVID-19. Administration
costs were £0.4 million higher due to
increased ERP system costs in line with
bringing the system back from Europe and
hosted in the UK. Other operating expense in
the year of £0.2 million (2020: £0.2 million
income) include foreign exchange losses and
amortisation of brand names.

Exceptional costs tofalling £0.2 million {2020:
£0.1 million) are predominantly restructuring
costs in Europe and dilapidation costs incurred
in the UK.

PERFORMANCE ON AN
UNDERLYING BASIS

The underlying profit before faxation is shown
fo present a clearer view of the frading
performance of the business. Management
identified the following items, whose inclusion
in performance distorts underlying trading
performance: share-based payments and

the amorfisation of infangibles which result
from historical acquisitions. Additionally,
exceptional items including refinance,
relocation and restructuring cosfs are one off
items and therefore have also been added
back in caleulating the underlying profit
before taxation.

10 Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Group

2021 2020

£000 £'000

Statutory Profit/[Loss) before taxation 345 (3,395)
adustmenss .
Nrrertrféreign exchongé Virrr{poct on inTercoranrprdny loans = 7 lMéJ
Arﬁ&ﬁsotion of Imongribrlrers — brands ond”aJrstomer lists 227 - 227
Shrdrrer;bosed poymen%sr 77777777 . 673 .
Exrcrerbrﬁonol foms: .
Rersrtrrﬁ&uring costs ]36 - 77]7
COVlD]Q wpot . (3'
Rerﬁrr%;jrncing osts = 7
Rer|rorcrdﬁon costs 75 .
Underlying profit/(loss) before taxation 1,456 (3,241)

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Third party sales by the UK business of
£37.4 million increased by 31% in the year
as a result of improvements in the choice of
products on offer and a significant increase
in direct sales via the website. The profit
before taxation of £1.0 million compared

fo £2.0 million loss last year reflects the
continued focus on getting products released
fo end customers and improvements within
the direct sales channel.

Sales by the European businesses of
£5.9 million decreased by 1% in the year
reflecting the difficulties the Group faced
shipping info Europe post Brexit. The loss
before tax was £0.5 million compares to
£0.3 million loss last year.

Sales in the US business of £5.2 million
increased by 60%. The trading loss of
£0.3 million compares to £1.0 million loss
in last year. We expect sales fo increase in
this key market in the longer term and
overheads fo reduce.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Property, plant and equipment increased
yearonyear by £2.5 million to £6.7 million
as a result of increased expenditure in
tooling for new products and fechnologies.
Group inventories increased from

£14.2 million to £15.1 million due to earlier
arrival of stock to ensure we had sufficient
stocks ahead of Chinese New Year and
growing coronavirus reports in the far east.
Trade and other receivables increased by
£0.7 million or 11% largely due the increase
in sales compared fo prior year. Trade and
other payables increased by £2.2 million
due fo the increased tooling spend and the
change in timing of import VAT since Brexit.
Overall investment in new tooling, new
infangible computer software and ofher
capital expenditure was £5.0 million
(2020: £2.7 million).

DIVIDEND

The Group s sfill in the turnaround phase
and there will not be a dividend payment this
year (2020: €nil). The Board continues fo
keep the dividend policy under review.

FINANCING

At 31 March 2021 the UK had a £12 million
Asset Based Lending facility with PNC Credit
Limited ('PNC’) and @ £9 million loan facility
with Phoenix Asset Management Partners.

The facility with PNIC s a floating facility
based on the current asset position capped
at £12 million ends June 2023 and carries a
margin of 2.5-3% over LIBOR. The PNC
Facility has a fixed and floating charge on
the assets of the Group. The Company
provides customary operational and financial
covenants fo PNC on a monthly basis.

The Phoenix Facility is a £9 million facility
with a rolling three-year term and attracts
inferest at a margin of 5% over LIBOR on
funds drawn. Undrawn funds affract a non-
utilisation fee of the higher of 1% or LIBOR.

Borrowings in the year ended 31 March
2021 were zero. (2020: £10.2 million

peak borrowings).

Net cash at 31 March 2021 was
£4.7 million compared with net cash

of £5.9 million at 31 March 2020.
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Our Key Performance Indicators ('KPls’)

The Direclors are of the opinion that the financial KPIs are revenues, gross margins, underlying (loss)/profit before tax and (loss|/earnings

per share, the information for which is available in these financial statements and summarised on the financial highlights section earlier

in this report. We additionally think that moving forward Capex Productivity, Inventory and Fixed Costs as percentage of Sales should

be monitored. We provide current and hisforical analysis in the CEO’s Statement on pages 4 to 8 and will continue to report in future Annual
Reports. The Board monifors progress against plan on a regular basis adjusting future objectives annually in line with current circumstances.

IDENTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board has the primary responsibility for identifying the major risks facing the Group and developing appropriate policies to manage
those risks. The Board complefes an annual risk assessment programme to identify the major risks and has reviewed and defermined any
mitigating actions required as sef out below. The risk assessment has been completed in the context of the overall strategic objectives and

the Business Plan of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk Description Impact/Sensitivity Mitigation/Comment
Market The Group has competition in the The Group performance is impacted by In many of our markets the Group still enjoys
competition model railway, slot racing, model the actions of competitors and changes @ sfrong market position due fo the continued
kits, die cast and paint markets. in the wider refail landscape. development of our brands. We will strive
Loss of market share fo increased to further improve the strength of our brands.
competitor activity or alternafive Production of high-quality products which
hobbies would have a negative cusfomers want is a key mitigating factor.
impact on the Group's results. Failure
fo evolve and innovate products
may lead to brands becoming less
relevant in the marketplace.
The The Business Plan may not fully The increase in business scale and The Group has developed clear targets and
Business achieve the aims of returning the reduction of costs and the re-conversion  has cost saving contingencies in the plan being
Plan Group to posifive cash generation of concession sales currently anticipated  actioned to put the necessary resources in place
in 2021/22. is not achieved and the Group does not  to deliver the aims of the plan.
achieve sustainable profit and cash
generation.
Hobby Overall decline in the hobby market  Failing inferest in fraditional hobbies In many of our markets the Group enjoys a sfrong
market could lead to greater levels of may impact our core Independent market position due to the confinued development
competition in the medium term, and National retailers and have of our brands. Brands are extremely imporfant in
which could have a negative impact  a consequent impact upon the the model sector with market entry cosfs being
on the Group's resulls. Group's performance. prohibitive. In the shortterm there is an opportunity
to regain market share lost through previous
underperformance.
Exchange  The Group purchases goods in US  Significant fluctuations in exchange The Group continues to hedge shortterm
rates Dollars and sells in Pounds Sterling,  rates to which the Group is exposed exposures by establishing forward currency
Euros and US Dollars and is could have a material adverse effect on  purchases using fixed rate and participating
therefore exposed to exchange the Group's future results. In particular forward contracts up to 12 months ahead.
rate fluctuations. the negative impact on Sterling of Brexit It is deemed impractical to hedge exchange
and the continuing uncerfainties could rafe movements beyond that period.
make the US Dollar purchase of ifs
goods more expensive.
Supply The Group's products are The Group does not have exclusive The Group is continuing to develop and review
chain manufactured by specialist labour arrangements with ifs suppliers and its vendor portfolio and has started diversifying

in China and India.

there is a risk that competition for
manufacturing capacity could lead
fo delays in infroducing new products
or servicing existing demand.

the supplier base. A 26-sfep critical path analysis
tool has been developed o monitor the whole
manufacturing process to identify and deal with
issues as they arise. The Group has its own
storage facilities in China where ifs fooling is
secured and managed.
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Impact/Sensitivity

Mitigation/Comment

Risk Description

Capital New tooling is important fo support

allocation  the production of new products.

Product The Group's products are subject

compliance to compliance with toy safety
legislation around the world.

Liquidity Insufficient financing fo meet the

needs of the business.

System and  The Group continues fo invest in

cyberrisk  the development of its website
and ERP systems.
Talentand  Recruitment, development and
skills retention of talented people are the
key to the success of any business.
COVID-19  Further outbreaks in the UK, US and

Europe and within our supply chain.

The risk is that the Group has insufficient
capital fo fund new tooling or invests
ineffectively in the wrong products.

Failure to comply could lead fo a
product recall resulting in damage
to Company and brand reputation
along with an adverse impact on
the Group's resuls.

Without the appropriate level of
financing, it would be increasingly
difficult to execute the Group's
business plans.

This exposes the business to greater
risk of financial loss, disruption

or damage fo the reputation of an
organisation from a failure of its
information fechnology systems.

The Group fails to refain the necessary
skills and talent to deliver the Group's
plans.

The Government may issue instructions
that result in our warehouses being
unable to fransport goods in or out.

strategies and brand delivery targets.

The Group has a £12.0 million ABL facility with PNC

the future needs of the business.

on upgrading the current ERP sysfem.

employees will participate in profits of the Group.

The business plan includes significant capital
expenditure to fund suitable products to underpin
the implementation of the business plan strategy

of the Group. This process will be underpinned by
a robust capital allocation process aligned to brand

Robust infernal processes and procedures,
active monitoring of proposed legislation and
involvement in policy debate and lobbying of
the relevant authorities.

and a £9.0 million revolving loan facility with Phoenix
Asset Management Partners. The Group's policy on
liquidity risk is fo maintain adequate facilities fo meet

The Group has invested significant ime and cost
in the new website and ERP sysfem in the last three
years. The Group has dedicated web and ERP
teams to monitor and maintain the Group's systems
and holds appropriate insurance policies to
minimise material risk. A new website went live

in January 2021 which has even higher security
than the exisfing system. We are also working

Management team to encourage and empower
employees. Key lost talent has been reacquired
and brought back into the Company. An employee
scheme was announced lost year where all

The ongoing situation is being monitored and
direction is taken from the Department of Business
and Central Government as the situation evolves.

MAIN CONTROL PROCEDURES

Management establishes control policies and procedures in response to each of the key risks identified. Control procedures operate fo ensure
the integrity of the Group's financial statements and are designed o meet the Group's requirements and both financial and operational risks
identified in each area of the business. Control procedures are documented where appropriate and reviewed by management and the

Board on an ongoing basis o ensure control weaknesses are mitigated.

The Group operates a comprehensive annual planning and budgeting system. The annual plans and budgets are approved by the Board.
The Board reviews the management accounts at its monthly meetings and financial forecasts are updated monthly. Performance against
budget is monitored and where any significant deviations are identified appropriate action is taken.

The Strategic Report has been signed on behalf of the Board.

'&w ~
Kirstie Gould

Chief Finance Officer

Q June 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2021, and up to the date of this report, the Company has applied the main principles of the QCA Corporate
Governance Code [the Code) and complied with its defailed provisions throughout the period under review. Full details of our approach to
govemance are set out below and, as a Board, we continue to be committed to good standards in governance practices and will continue
fo review the governance structures in place, to ensure that the current practices are appropriate for our current shareholder base and that,
where necessary, changes are made.

The key governance principles and practices are described in the statement below, together with the Audit and Nomination and
Remuneration Committees’ reports on pages 18 to 21 and the Directors’ Report on pages 23 to 27.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JOHN STANSFIELD

Independent

Non-Executive Chairman
Aged 66

John Stansfield was
appointed Non-Executive
Chairman in August 2018.
Prior fo that, he had been a
Non-Executive Director of
the Company, having been
appointed in January 2018.

John is a Fellow of the
Chartered Insfitute of
Management Accountants
and spent 31 years with
the Group, 12 years of
which he was Group
Finance Director.

He re-joined the Company,
after having left in 2013.

John helped to deliver some
of the Group's most
profitable years and has a
wedlth of experience in the
toy and hobby sectors.

John is also Chair of the
Audit Committee and a
member of the
Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.

LYNDON DAVIES

Chief Executive Officer

Aged 60

lyndon joined the Board
as Chief Executive in
October 2017

He is a highly-experienced
model and hobby
professional with 45 vears’
experience in the industry.
He has built Oxford
Diecast into a successful
infernational business over
the past two decades,
focusing on Diecast
vehicles, aircraft and,
more recently, rail-based
producfs.

lyndon is also Chairman of
Oxford Diecast (‘Oxford’),
a business founded in
1993. He remains the
majority shareholder of
LCD Enterprises limited, the
ultimate owner of the
Oxford Diecast brands.

KIRSTIE GOULD

Chief Finance Officer &
Company Secretary

Aged 48

Kirstie Gould was appointed
as Chief Finance Officer of
the Company in January
2018 after spending over

2 years with Homby as a
consultant in the finance
department. Kirstie also acts
as Company Secretary.

Kirstie is a Fellow of the
Insfitute of Chartered
Accountants in England
and Wales, qualifying with
PricewaterhouseCoopers in
1997 and has since held
senior management and
directorship roles across a
number of high growth
SME firms including

Affini Technology Limited
[part of the TTG Group)
and Gamma
Communications ple.

DANIEL CARTER

Independent

Non-Executive Director
Aged 26

Daniel Carter was
appointed as a Non-
Executive Director in
July 2020.

Daniel is an Investment
Analyst at Phoenix Asset
Management which
controls the funds that own
74.7% of the ordinary
shares of Homby PLC.

Daniel studied Economics
at The University of Bath.

Daniel is Chair of the
Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
and a member of the
Audit Committee.

Our Board and Committees Membership
B Board [l Audit

Remuneration and Nomination Chair
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COMPOSITION AND INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD

The Board is comprised of two executive directors and two
non-executive directors, (including the independent Non-Executive
Chairman). During the year, the Board is of the opinion that the
composition of the Board, continues to represent an appropriate
balance between executive and non-executive directors, given our
size and our operations. John Stansfield is considered independent
due fo the time elapsed since his employment with the Group
originally. Daniel Carter is considered independent as he has no
control over the voting shares of Phoenix Asset Management.

The Board members collectively have skills and expertise embracing
a range of areas including finance, auditing, engineering,
manufacturing, design, general management, sales and innovation.
The Chairman and Chief Executive in particular, have extensive,
directly applicable experience of working within the toy and hobby
products industry. VWe do however intend to carry out periodic
reviews of the composition of the Board to ensure that ifs skillset
and experience are appropriate for the effective leadership and
long-ferm success of the business as it develops. These reviews will
give due consideration to having more diversity on the Board, as
well as to other priorities.

Details of each Director's background and experience are set out in
the table opposite.

APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD AND RE-ELECTION

The Board takes decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors as a whole following the recommendations of its
Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The task of searching for
appropriate candidates and assessing potential candidates' skills
and suitability for the role has been delegated to the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee. Further information on the roles of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee and also the Audit
Committee of the Board can be found on pages 18 to 21.

The Company'’s Articles of Association require that one-third of
directors [excluding any directors who have been appointed since
the last Annual General Meetfing (AGM)), refire by rotation at each
AGM. In accordance with best practice in corporate governance,
all the Directors will offer themselves for re-election.

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board
which is set out in defail on the Hornby PLC corporate website at
hitp: //\www.homby.plc.uk/ and summarised further on in this report.

The Board is responsible for the formulating of the overall business
strategy and the Executive feam is responsible for the managing of
the business to realise this strategy. The roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are separate and clearly defined, in line with the
recommendations of the QCA Corporate Governance Code.
Responsibility for overseeing the Board is the responsibility of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
overseeing the implementation of the Company’s strategy and its
operational performance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Executive Directors, as with the Non-Executive Directors, are
encouraged fo use their independent judgement in the discharging
of their duties. They are responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business, including its trading, financial and operational
performance. Issues and progress made are reported fo the Board

by the Chief Executive Officer.

Executive Directors are ful-ime employees of the Company and
have entered info service agreements with the Company. Directors’
contracts are available for inspection at the Company’s registered
office and af the Annual General Meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board considers the Non-Executive Directors fo be sufficiently
competent. They provide objectivity and substantial input to the
activities of the Board, from their various areas of expertise.

Non-Executive Directors are contracted to work no less
than 15 days per year.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

SUCCESSION PLANNING

During the year, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee was
delegated with the task of formulating succession plans for the
business, identifying areas where there is a skills shortage, extending
the area of focus to senior management level and ensuring that the
plans cover several years. We have identified a number of
employees that have the potential o succeed the Executive Team.

The Board also recognises that diversity is a key element in
strengthening the contribution made to Board deliberations and
in the course of our search for suitable candidates, due regard is
given fo this in addition to the skills and experience a potential
candidate brings.

HOW THE BOARD OPERATES

The Board refains control of certain key decisions through the
Schedule of Matters reserved for the Board. Other matters,
responsibilities and authorities have been delegated fo its Audit
and Remuneration and Nomination Committees and these are
documented in the terms of reference of each of those committees,
which can be found on the Company's corporate website at
http://www.hornby.plc.uk/.

The Board is responsible for:

e overall management of the business;

¢ developing the Company’s strategy, business planning,
budgeting and risk management;

e monitoring performance against agreed objectives;

e setting the business' values, standards and culture;

e infernal control and risk management;

® remuneration;

e membership and chairmanship of Board and Board Committees;
* relationships with shareholders and other stakeholders;

e determining the financial and corporate structure of the business;
® major investment and divestment decisions;

e the Company’s compliance with relevant legislations and
regulations; and

e other ad hoc matters such as the approval of the Company’s

principal advisors.

The Board met twelve times during the year. All Directors attended
all twelve meetings.

THE MAIN ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

Key Board activities this year included:

dealing with the impact of COVID-19;
e dealing with the impact of Brexit;
e discussing strategic priorifies;

e reviewing feedback from our institutional shareholders following
our full and half year results; and

® input info implementing the next phase of the Turnaround Plan.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates authority to two committees: the Audit

and the Remuneration and Nomination Committees, to assist in
meeting ifs business objectives. The Committees meet independently
of Board meetings.

Each committee has terms of reference setting out their responsibilities,
which were reviewed and approved by the Board during the year.
These are available on the Company’s corporate website
http://www.hornby.plc.uk/.

We have made some improvements in our governance
arrangements inc|uding imroducing reporting by the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee as well as the Audit Committee in our
Annual Report and Accounts. These reports can be found on pages
20 to 27/.

The Audit Committee comprises the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company and met three times during the year. The
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance Officer and other managers
aftend by invitation. The external auditors aftend meetings and have
direct access fo the Committee.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee meet at least once
a year with all members being present. The members are all
Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman. The Committee is
responsible for esfablishing and reporting to the Board, procedures
for defermining policy on executive remuneration and also the
performance-related elements of remuneration, which align the
inferest of the Directors with those of the shareholders.

lts remit also includes matters of nomination and succession planning
for Directors and senior key executives, with the final approval for
appointments resting with the Board. Directors excuse themselves
from meetings where the matter under discussion is their own
succession when appropriate.

EXTERNAL ADVISORS

The Board makes use of the expertise of external advisors where
necessary, fo enhance knowledge or gain access to particular skills
or capabiliies. Areas where external advisors are used include and
are not limited to: di\igence work on major confracts; recruifment;
and Company secretarial and corporate govemnance. The list of
external advisors is set out on page 22.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, INFORMATION
AND SUPPORT

The Board considers all Directors to be effective and committed
to their roles.

All Directors receive regular and timely information on the business'
operational and financial performance. Ahead of the Board and
Committee meetings, papers are circulated to all Direcfors to ensure
that they are fully informed and can participate fully in discussions.

Directors keep their skillset up to date through a combination of
attendance at industry events, individual professional development
and experience gained from other Board roles. The Company
Secretary ensures that the Board is aware of any applicable
regulatory changes and updates as and when relevant. The Board
is also given an annual refresher in AIM Rules and this was last
provided in January 2021 by its Nominated Advisors, Liberum
Capital Limited. This refresher is designed fo enable Directors to
keep abreast of corporate governance developments.

Directors are also able to take independent professional advice
in the furtherance of their duties, if necessary, af the Company's
expense. Directors also have direct access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
supports the Chairman in ensuring that the Board receives the
information and support it needs to carry out its roles.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Outside interests and commitments of Direcfors, and changes fo
these commitments are reported to and agreed by the Board.
lyndon Davies' potential conflict of inferest as a majority shareholder
in LCD Enferprises Limited is mifigated by the fact that he is one of
four Directors on the Homby PLC Board and also by the fact that the
Board has effective procedures in place fo monitor and manage
conflicts of interests. In addition, no one member of the Board has
unfettered powers to make decisions.

LCD Enterprises Limited owns Oxford Diecast Limited and Oxford
Diecast [HK] Limited. Both companies provide service and,/or

goods to the Group af arms-length pricing. Details can be found
in Note 29.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Chairman considers the operation of the Board and
performance of the Direcfors on an ongoing basis as part of his
duties and will bring any areas of improvement he considers are
needed to the attention of the Board. However, the Board
recognises the need fo put in place an annual formal evaluation
process for the Board, its Committees and individual Directors.

The effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and Directors will
be reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY

Although the Board delegates authority to its Committees and
also the day-to-day management of the business to the Executive
Directors, it is accountable for the overall leadership, strategy
and control of the business in order to achieve its strategic aims
in accordance with good corporate governance principles.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Mitigating the risks that a Company faces as it seeks to create
long-term value for its shareholders, is the positive by-product of
applying good corporate governance. At Hornby, all employees
are responsible for identifying and monitoring risks across their
areas. However, the Board sefs the overall risk sirategy for the
business. The business maintains a Risk Register and a Fraud
Register, which are presented and considered at the Audit
Committee meetings.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REPORTING

In our halfyear, final and any other ad hoc reports and other
information provided by the Company, the Board seeks to present
a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the business’
posifion and prospects. The Board receives a number of reports,
including those from the Audit Committee, to enable it to monitor
and clearly understand the business’ financial position.

The Board considers that this Annual Report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

BUSINESS ETHICS

Our commitment fo our customers and having a people-oriented
ethos is central to the success of achieving our strategy. We value
the skills of our employees and it is through the efforts of these
dedicated people that we are able to grow our customer base.

We endeavour o conduct our business affairs in a way that reflects
our values. Our suppliers are audited fo ensure that their policies
and procedures comply with the Modemn Slavery and Human
Trafficking Act, which ensures that workplace and conditions of
employment for their employees are of an acceptable standard. We
reinforce our expectations to achieve and maintain these standards.
Our Statement on Modem Slavery and Human Trafficking can be
found on our corporate website http://www.homby.plc.uk/.

WHISTLEBLOWING

The business has procedures in place for detecting fraud and

for whistleblowing fo ensure that arrangements are in place for
all employees to raise concerns in confidence, about possible
irregularities and non-compliance in matters of financial reporting
or other matters. These procedures and policies are reviewed

by the Audit Committee.
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Audit Committee Report

As Chair of the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’), | am pleased to present our
Audit Committee Report for the year ended 31 March 2021.

MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committee comprises two members, Daniel Carter and
myself, John Stansfield. Both of us are independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company. | am the member of the Commitiee, who
with the background as a chartered management accountant has
significant, recent and relevant financial experience. Our
biographies are set out on page 14.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee met three times during the year ended 31 March
2021. All members of the Committee at the time of each meeting
were present af the meetings. At least one of these meetings was
with the external auditor, without the executive Board members
present. lyndon Davies and Kirstie Gould also atfended meetings
by invitation.

DUTIES:

The full list of the Committee’s responsibilities is set out in its Terms
of Reference, which is available on the Company’s website at
http://www.homby.plc.uk/ and is summarised below as follows:
e External Audit;

e Financial Reporting;

¢ Internal Confrol and Risk Management;

¢ |nternal Audit: and

® Reporting on activities of the Committee.

The terms of reference for the Committee are reviewed annually and
approved by the Board.

The main items of business considered by the Committee during the
year included:

* a review of the yearend audit plan, consideration of the scope
of the audit, the consistency in the application of accounting
policies and the external auditor’s fees;

e consideration and approval of the external audit report and
management representation lefter;

® a review of the Annual Report and financial statements, including
consideration of the significant accounting issues relating fo the
financial statements, and the going concern review;

* a review and approval of the interal financial statement; and

® approving revised borrowing and credit facilities.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Committee has the primary responsibility for recommending

the appointment of the external audifor and reviewing the findings
of the auditor's work. The Company’s external auditor is Crowe UK.
LLP. There will be ongoing diclogue between the Committee and
the auditor on actions to improve the effectiveness of the external
audit process.

Having reviewed the auditor's independence and performance to
date, the Committee has recommended to the Board that they be
reappointed for the 2022 audit. A resolution to reappoint Crowe
UK LLP as the Company's auditor is fo be proposed at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting [AGM) in September 2021.

POLICIES FOR NON-AUDIT SERVICES

In addition to the audit services they provide, Crowe U.K. LLP will
prepare and submit our tax computations but will only commence
work on this assignment affer the financial statfements have

been signed.

AUDIT PROCESS

The extemal auditor prepares an audit plan sefting out how the
auditor will review the inferim and audit the full-year financial
statements. The audit plan is reviewed, agreed in advance and
overseen by the Committee. The plan includes the proposed scope
of the work, the approach to be taken with the audit and also
describes the auditor’s assessment of the principal risks facing the
business.

Prior to approval of the financial statements, the external auditor
presents its findings to the Committee, highlighting areas of
significant financial judgement for discussion.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Audit Committee has considered the need for an infernal audit
function during the year and is of the view that, given the size and
nature of the Company's operations and finance team, there is no
current requirement fo establish a separate internal audit function.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Through the work of the Committee, the Board carries out an annual
risk assessment programme to identify the principal risks to the
business and these include:

o UK market dependence and conditions;

e the New Business Plan;

e the status of the model/hobby market;

e exchange rofes;

o the supp\y chain function;

e capital allocation;

¢ product compliance;

e liquidity;

e systems and cyber risks;

e talent and skills; and

® Brexit.

The Committee also reviews the effectiveness of control policies and
procedures in place to deal with the risks mentioned. Further details
on the business risks identified and the actions being faken are set

out on pages 12 to 13 of the Operating and Financial Review
Report.

The process of risk management in the business is continually
reviewed.

John Stansfield
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Q June 2021
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Remuneration and Nomination Committee Report

As Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee (‘the Committee’),
| am pleased to present our report for the year ended 31 March 2021 which
sets out details of the composition, structure and activities of the Committee and
remuneration paid to Directors during the year.

The Board has taken the decision to expand the schedule of matters
it has delegated to its Remuneration Committee, to include matters
which are typically within the remit of @ nomination committee. Iis
terms of reference were revised accordingly and the Committee was
renamed the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

MEMBERSHIP

The Committee currently comprises two independent Non-Executive
Directors, John Stansfield and myself, Daniel Carter, whose
biographies are set out on page 14.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee meets at least once a year and at such other times
during the year as is necessary to discharge its dufies. During the
year, the Committee mef twice. Only members of the Committee
have the right to attend meetings, although other individuals, such as
the Chief Executive Officer and external advisers, may be invited to
attend for all or part of any meeting.

DUTIES

The Committee works closely with the Board to formulate
remuneration policy and consider succession plans and possible
internal candidates for future Board roles, having regard to the views
of shareholders. The main duties of the Committee are set ouf in its
Terms of Reference, which are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.homby.plc.uk] and include the following key
responsibilifies:

REMUNERATION

® set remuneration policy for all Executive Directors (including
pension rights and any compensation payments), and in the
process, review and give due consideration to pay and
employment conditions throughout the Company, especially
when determining annual salary increases;

® approve the design of, and determine targets for any
performance-related pay schemes operated by the Company;

e recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration
for senior management; and

* review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by
the Board and shareholders.

NOMINATION

e regularly review the structure, size and composition, fincluding
the skills, experience, knowledge and diversity] of the Board and
make recommendations fo the Board as to any changes necessary;

e give full consideration fo succession planning for Directors and
other senior executives in the course of its work, taking info
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company
and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future;

* lead the process for all potential appointments to the Board and
make recommendations to the Board in relation to them; and

* evaluate the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the Board; and following any evaluation, identify
and nominate for approval by the Board, potential candidates
to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

The Committee considered:

e Executive Directors’ bonuses and salaries;
* performance criteria for the new LTIP and future awards under the LTIP;

® succession planning and the search for an additional Non-Exec
Director;

e clection and re-election of directors at the AGM:; and

e a review of the Committee’s terms of reference.

The Committee considers business strategy when recommending the
appointment of directors and setting and reviewing remuneration.

DIVERSITY

It is the Board's view and commitment that recruitment, promotion
and any other selection exercises are conducted on the basis of
merit against objective criteria that avoid discrimination. No
individual should be discriminated against on the ground of race,
colour, ethnicity, religious belief, political affiliation, gender, age or
disobihf\/, and this extends fo Board appointments.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity, including gender
diversify, on the Board, o\though it believes that all appointments
should be made on merit, while ensuring there is an appropriate
balance of skills and experience within the Board. The Board currently
consists of 25% (one) female and 75% (three) male Board members.
The Board's age demographic ranges from 26 to 66. The business
consists of 66% male employees and 34% female employees.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The objective of the remuneration policy is to promote the long-ferm
success of the Company, giving due regard fo the views of
shareholders and stakeholders. In formulating remuneration policy
for the Executive Directors, the Committee:

e considers Directors experience and the nature and complexity
of their work in order to pay a competitive salary, (in line with
comparable companies), that aftracts and retains directors of the
highest quality;

e considers pay and employment conditions within the Company
and salary levels within listed companies of a similar size;

e considers Direcfors’ personal performance; and

e links individual remuneration packages fo the business’ longterm
performance and continued success of the business through the
award of annual bonuses and share-based incentive schemes.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Base salary

Executive Directors’ base salaries are reviewed annually by the
Committee, taking info account the responsibilities, skills and
experience of each individual, pay and employment conditions
within the Company and the salary levels within listed companies
of a similar size.

Annual bonus

Executive Directors do not receive annual bonuses.

Long-term Incentive Plan

A new long Term Incentive Plan, (‘LTIP") was awarded during
the year.

Other benefits

Policies concerning benefits are reviewed periodically. Currently
taxable benefits comprise Company car allowance or a travel
allowance and private health cover. The Committee also retains
the discrefion to offer additional benefits as appropriate.

The Executive Directors and senior managers are members of
defined confribution pension schemes and annual contributions
are calculated by reference 1o base salaries, with neither annual
bonuses nor awards under the share incentive schemes taken info
account in calculating the amounts due.

Service agreements and termination payments

Defails of the Executive Directors’ service agreements are sef out below.

Notice Notice
Unexpired period by  period by
Director Date of Contract Term Company Director
lyndon 5 Ocfober 2017 Rolling 9 months 6 months
Davies ~contract - )
Kirstie 21 December 2017 Rolling @ months 6 months
Gould confract

Compensation for loss of office is based on the base salary of the Director.

Employees’ pay
Employees’ pay and conditions throughout the business are considered
when reviewing remuneration policy for Executive Directors.

The Board approved a profit share scheme for all employees
[excluding Executive Directors), whereby a one-off bonus of 5%

of salary is paid out when the Company breaks even and 15%
of operating profit is shared among employees proportionately
thereafter. This is a mechanism aimed at addressing issues of
motivation of employees below Board level. It is also fo ensure
that the Company aftracts and retains the best falent and that their
interests align with that of shareholders.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration payable to Non-Executive Directors (other than the
Non-Executive Chairman) is decided by the Chairman and Executive
Directors. The remuneration payable fo the Non-Executive Chairman
is decided by the other Board members.

Fees are designed to ensure the Company aftracts and retains

high calibre individuals. They are reviewed on an annual basis

and account is taken of the level of fees paid by other companies
of a similar size and complexity. Non-Executive Directors do

not participate in any annual bonus, share options or pension
arrangements. The Company repays the reasonable expenses that
Non-Executive Directors incur in carrying out their duties as Directors.

Terms of appointment

Each of the Non-Executive Directors signed a leffer of appointment

for an initial period of two years which can be terminated by either
party giving fo the other prior written nofice of three month(s). John
Stansfield signed a letter on 2 January 2018 and Daniel Carter signed
his on 16 July 2020. The contract continues as long as the Non-
Executive Directors are re-elected at the AGM. Both John Stansfield and
myself will stand for re-election at the next AGM in September 2021.

Poaxte.—

Daniel Carter
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Q June 2021
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Directors and Corporate Information

DIRECTORS

The full defails of all directors who served in the year ended

31 March 2021 can be found below.
John Stansfield

Non-Executive Chairman

Lyndon Davies

Chief Executive

Kirstie Gould
Chief Finance Officer

Daniel Carter

Non-Executive Director

Kirstie Gould
Company Secretary

REGISTERED OFFICE

Enterprise Road
Westwood Industrial Estate
Margate

Kent CTQ 4JX

COMPANY REGISTERED NUMBER
Registered in England Number: 01547390

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Independent Auditors
Crowe UK. LLP
Riverside House
40-46 High Street
Maidstone

Kent MET4 1JH

SOLICITORS

Taylor Wessing LLP
5 New Street Square
london EC4A 3TW

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Barclays Bank PLC
@ St George's Street
Canterbury

Kent CT1 2JX

NOMINATED ADVISOR AND BROKERS

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropemaker Place

25 Ropemaker Street
Llondon EC2Y QLY

REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER AGENTS

Link Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report together with the audited consolidated
and Company financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

STATUTORY INFORMATION CONTAINED ELSEWHERE IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

Information required to be part of the Directors’ Report can be found
elsewhere in this document, as indicated, and is incorporated info
this report by reference:

The Group's business review is set out in the Strategic Report on
pages 10 to 11.

The Corporate Governance Report on page 14 to 17.

Details of the salaries, bonuses, benefits and share interests of
Direcfors on pages 26 to 27.

Section 172 statement, the key issues and stakeholder
considerations discussed by the Board during the year and how the
Company engages with its stakeholders are set out on page 9 of
the Strategic Report.

Directors’ responsibility statements on page 24.

Likely future events are disclosed within the CEO's Statement
on page 8.

Post balance sheet events are set out in Note 31.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding Company, limited by shares, registered
(and domiciled] in England Reg. No. 01547390 with a Spanish
branch and has six operating subsidiaries: Homby Hobbies Limited
in the United Kingdom with a branch in Hong Kong, Hornby
America Inc. in the US, Hornby Espaiia S.A. in Spain, Hornby
ltalia s.r.l. in ltaly, Homby France S.A.S. in France and Hornby
Deutschland GmbH in Germany. Hornby PLC is a public limited
Company which is a member of AIM and incorporated and
operating in the United Kingdom.

The Group is principally engaged in the development, design,
sourcing and distribution of hobby and interactive products.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. Revenue for the year
was £48.5 million compared to £37.8 million last year. The profit
for the year attributable to equity holders amounted to £0.3 million
(2020: £3.4 million loss). The position of the Group and Company
is set out in the Group and Company Statements of Financial
Position. Future developments are sef out within the CEO Statement.

No interim dividend was declared in the year (2020: £nil) and the
Directors do not recommend a final dividend (2020: £nil).

GOING CONCERN

The Group has in place a £12.0 million Asset Based Lending [ABL)
facility with PNC Credit Limited through to June 2023. The PNC
Covenants are customary operational covenants applied on a
monthly basis. In addition, the Group entered a committed £9.0
million loan facility with Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited
(the Group's largest shareholder) if it should be required which is a
three-year rolling facility.

The Group has prepared trading and cash flow forecasts for a
period of three years, which have been reviewed and approved by
the Board. On the basis of these forecasts, the facilities with PNC
and Phoenix and affer a detailed review of trading, financial
position and cash flow models [taking COVID-19 into account), the
Direcfors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and
Company have adequate resources fo continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue
fo adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
annual financial statements.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Board considers that research and development info products
continues o play an important role in the Group's success. R&D
costs of £1.3 million (see Nofe 4) incurred in the year have been
charged fo the Statement of Comprehensive Income as these costs
all relate to research activities.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company maintained liability insurance for its Directors and
officers during the financial year and up fo the date of approval of
the Annual Report and Accounts. The Company has also provided
an indemnity for its Directors and the secretary, which is a qualifying
third party indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies
Act 2006.

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (SECR)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) is the UK
Government's name for energy and carbon reporting and taxation.
SECR came info force on 1 April 2019.

As a largely office-based business, the Group has a relatively low
carbon presence. Under the SECR requirements we are reporting
energy use and business mileage for all our UK operations. As this is
the first reporting period where SECR requirements apply there is no
comparafive information.
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Directors’ Report continued

2021 2021 2020 2020

Consumpti Consumpti C ption C ption

Scope Activity kWh (tCO.€) kWh (tCO,e)
Scope 1 Business Mileage 38,263 Q.3 - -
Scope 2 Purchased Electricity 446,069 104.0 - -
Purchased Gas 493,767 100.6 - -

978,099 2139 - -

Intensity metric

An intensity metric of tCO,e per £m revenue has been applied for
the annual total consumption.

2021 2020

tCO,e/Em Revenue 4.22 -

During the reporting year, the Group has started a transition for the
car fleet to hybrid cars. A pre-COVID strategic investment in video
conferencing and other computer system developments enabled staff
to effectively work from home during the pandemic, and further
facilitated in a reduction in business miles travelled.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has been notified that at close of business on 28
May 2021 the following parties were interested in 3% or more of
the Company’s ordinary share capital.

Number of
Shareholder ordinary shares  Percentage held
Phoenix Asset Management 124,634,330 74.66
Artemis Fund Managers Limited 27551,350 16.50

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial stafements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Direcfors fo prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
infernational accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under Company law the
Direcfors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
Company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are required fo:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

e state whether applicable international accounting standards in
conformity with the Companies Act 2006 have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate o presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and defection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy af
any fime the financial position of the Group and Company and
enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 20006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and
Company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report
is approved:

e 5o far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a
Directfor in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and fo establish that the Group and Company's
auditors are aware of that information.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise
borrowings, cash and liquid resources, and various items, such as
frade receivables, frade payables, efc. that arise directly from its
operations. The Group's financial liabilities comprise borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and finance leases. The main
purpose of the Group's borrowings is to provide finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has financial assets comprising cash
and trade and other receivables.

The Group also enters info derivatives transactions [principally
forward foreign currency contracts). The purpose of such transactions
is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's operations.
Itis, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's
policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall

be underfaken.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk is managed by the Group and more information
on this can be found within the Notes fo the financial statements.

PERSONNEL POLICIES

Hornby is committed to eliminating discrimination and encouraging
diversity amongst our workforce. Our aim is that our workforce will

be fruly representative of all sections of society and each employee
feels respected and able 1o give of their best.

To that end the purpose of personnel policies are to provide equality
and fairess for all in our employment and not fo discriminate on
grounds of gender, marital status, race, ethnic origin, colour,
nationality, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, religion or
age. We oppose all forms of unlawful and unfair discrimination.

All employees, whether part time, full time or temporary, are treated
fairly and with respect. Selection for employment, promotion,
fraining or any other benefit is on the basis of apfitude and ability.
All employees are helped and encouraged to develop their full
potential and the talents and resources of the workforce are fully
utilised fo maximise the efficiency of the organisation.

Qur commitments are:
® {o creafe an environment in which individual differences and the

contributions of all our staff are recognised and valued;

e every employee is enfifled to a working environment that
promotes dignity and respect to all. No form of infimidation,
bullying or harassment is tolerated;

® training, development and progression opportunities are
available to all staff;

¢ equality in the workplace is good management practice and
makes sound business sense;

e to regularly review all our employment practices and procedures
fo ensure fairness;

® breaches of our equality policy are regarded as misconduct and
may lead fo disciplinary proceedings; and

e these policies will be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group places importance on the contributions made by all
employees fo the progress of the Group and aims to keep them
informed via formal and informal meetings.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The rules governing the appointment and rep|ocemem of Directors
are set out in the Company's Articles of Association. The Arficles of
Associafion may be amended by a special resolution of the
Company's shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of 1p
each. Each share carries the right to one vote af general meefings of
the Company. The issued share capital of the Company, together
with movements in the Company’s issued share capital is shown in
Note 21. Ordinary shareholders are entitled to receive notice and to
aftend and speak at general meetings.

Each shareholder present in person or by proxy (or by duly
authorised corporate representatives) has, on a show of hands, one
vote. On a poll, each shareholder present in person or by proxy has
one vote for each share held.

Other than the general provisions of the Articles (and prevailing
|egis\oﬂon) there are no specific restrictions of the size of a ho|ding
or on the fransfer of the ordinary shares.

The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of
the Company’s shares that may result in the restriction of the transfer
of securities or on voting rights. No shareholder holds securities
carrying any special rights or control over the Company’s share
capital.

AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE OWN SHARES

The Company was authorised by shareholder resolution at the
2020 Annual General Meeting to purchase up to 10% of its issued
share capital. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and authority sought fo purchase up to
10% of its issued share capital. Under this authority, any shares
purchased must be held as freasury shares or, otherwise, cancelled
resulting in a reduction of the Company's issued share capifal.

No shares were purchased by the Company during the year.
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Directors’ Report continued

CHANGE OF CONTROL - SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

There are a number of agreements that may fake effect, alter or
ferminate on a change of control of the Company. None of these
are considered to be significant in their likely impact on the business
as a whole.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company has made no political donations during the year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution to reappoint the auditor Crowe UK. LLP, will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

AUDITED

Year ended 31 March 2021

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting is to be scheduled for 15 September
2021. A notice of the Annual General Meeting will be sent out to
shareholders separately to this Annual Report and Accounts.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Executive Directors” base salaries are reviewed annually by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee taking info account the
responsibilities, skills and experience of each individual, pay and
employment conditions within the Company and salary levels within
listed companies of a similar size.

The following table summarises the fotal salary and pension
contributions received by Directors for 202021 and 2019-20
in line with the Companies Act 2006 requirement:

Year ended 31 March 2020

Total salary and Total salary and

Basic salary, Pension pension Basic salary, Pension pension

allowances and contributions contributions  allowances and contributions contributions

fees £000 £000 £000 fees £000 £000 £000

L Davies [Appointed 5 October 2017) 222 = 222 222 - 222

K Gould [Appointed 4 January 2018) 151 28 179 136 25 161

J Wilson [Resigned 16 July 2020) - - - - - -

D Carter (Appointed 16 July 2020) - - - - - -

J Stansfield (Appointed 4 January 2018) 71 - 71 70 - 70

Total 444 28 472 428 25 453

Performance Share Plan awards outstanding (Audited)

At 31 March 2021, outstanding awards to Directors under the PSP were as follows:

Market As at

Award Vesting price at Awarded during 31 March

Director date date award date At 1 April 2020 the year 2021

lyndon Davies Nov 2020 June 2022 54p - 2,670,846 2,670,846

Kirstie Gould Nov 2020 June 2022 54p - 2,670,846 2,670,846

Under the terms of the LTIP, awards are subject fo strict vesting
criteria. These are linked to the Company's performance over
pre-established dates.

The potential level of vesting will be determined by the level of
Operating Profit announced in the 2021/22 Group results,
expected on or around June 2022, the maximum aggregate number
of 10,683,384 options vesting if the maximum Operating Profit
hurdle is achieved by the Company and a pro-rata per cent of the
maximum level of options vesting if certain reduced Operating Profit
hurdles are achieved.

Under the terms of the LTIP, the total equity pool under option

in a cumulative ten-year period (including shares already issued
in relation fo previous option exercises), shall not exceed 15%.
Following implementation of the LTIP, 6.4% of the Company's fotal
issued share capital will be held under option.
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Benefits and Pension (Unaudited)

Policies concerning benefits, including the Group's Company car
policy, are reviewed periodically. Currently, benefits in kind comprise
motor cars or a fravel allowance and private health cover, both of
which are non-performance related. The Executive Directors and
senior managers are members of defined contribution pension
schemes and annual contributions are calculated by reference to base
salaries, with neither annual bonuses nor awards under the share
incentive schemes taken info account in calculating the amounts due.

Executive Directors’ service contracts (Unaudited)

Executive Direcfors do not have fixed period contracts.

Payments to Past Directors, policy on payment of loss of office
and termination payments (Audited).

There were no paymentfs fo past Directors made during the year.
Notice periods are set under individual service confracts but the
Company has a policy for Executive Directors of a notice period
of nine months to be given by the Company and of six months

to be given by the individual. The compensation for loss of office is
based upon the respective service contracts and the components
are based on the base salary of the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Interests in shares

Inferests of the Directors in the shares of the Company at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 were:

At At
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
number number
Executive Directors

L Davies 795,144 795144
K Gould 55,006 55,006

Non-Executive Directors
J Wilson - 41,311
D Carter = -
J Stansfield 85,358 85,358

All the inferests defailed above are beneficial. Two of the Directors
also have share options as defailed in Note 22. Apart from the
inferests disclosed above no Directors were inferested at any fime in
the year in the share capital of any other Group Company. Daniel
Carter is also an employee at Phoenix Asset Management Partners
Limited who hold a substantial shareholding in Hornby PLC.

On behalf of the Board

Qw

Kirstie Gould
Chief Finance Officer

Westwood
Margate
CTO 4JX

@ June 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Hornby PLC

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Horby PLC (the 'Parent Company’) and ifs subsidiaries [the ‘Group') for the year ended
31 March 2021 which comprise:

e the Group and Parent Company statements of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021;

e the Group and Parent Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2021;

e the Group and Parent Company statements of cash flows for the year then ended;

e the Group and Parent Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

® the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, the financial statements:
* give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of the Group's profit
and Parent Company’s loss for the period then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with infernational accounting standards; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing (UK] (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Directors” assessment of the entity’s ability fo confinue fo adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included:

® reviewing the cash flow model provided by management and challenging the assumptions made;

* reviewing management's forecasts which show continued growth in both revenue and profitability. Our assessment therefore considered
if this will be feasible in light of past losses and recent economic conditions;

e considering the accuracy of past budgeting since the new management team fook over, as well as a review of the April management
accounts compared fo forecast; and

* considering the cash position of the business along with current facilities available for drawdown.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating fo events or conditions that, individually or

collectively, may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to confinue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when
the financial statfements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect fo going concem are described in the relevant sections of this report.

OVERVIEW OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH
Materiality

In planning and performing our audit we applied the concept of materiality. An item is considered material if it could reasonably be
expected fo change the economic decisions of a user of the financial statements. We used the concept of materiality to both focus our
festing and fo evaluate the impact of misstatements identified.
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Based on our professional judgement, we determined overall materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole fo be £215,000
[FY20 £215,000), based on turnover and the profitability of the business.

Overall Company materiality was sef at £200,000 based on net assets, restricted so as nof to exceed Group materiality.

We use a different level of materiality {'performance materiality’) to determine the extent of our fesfing for the audit of the financial statements.
Performance materiality is set based on the audit materiality as adjusted for the judgements made as fo the entity risk and our evaluation of
the specific risk of each audit area having regard to the internal control environment.

Where considered appropriate performance materiality may be reduced to a lower level, such as, for related party transactions and

Directors' remuneration. »
=
a

We agreed with the Audit Committee to report fo it all identified errors in excess of £10,000 (2020: £10,000). Errors below that threshold S

would also be reported fo it if, in our opinion as audifor, disclosure was required on qualitative grounds. ;
)
o

OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT £

We performed an audit of the complete financial information of two full scope components, Homby PLC and Homby Hobbies Limited. The

European sales offices and US trading subsidiary were audited using a component materiality level of £180,000 for the purposes of the

consolidation only.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of

the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified.

These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing

the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial stafements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
@
)

We considered going concern fo be a key audit matter. Our observations on this area are set out in the Conclusions relating to Going H
o)

Concern section of the audit report. 3
=1
(2]
e

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter
Carrying value of goodwill and intangibles We reviewed management's impairment review which includes impairment reviews for
The Group holds goodwill af a carrying value of £4.5m invesiments, goodwill and intangible asses.

and brand relations af a carrying value of £1.5m.
The reviews relied on forecasts of future cash flows based on Board approved

The Parent Company also holds significant investments and  forecasts. We challenged management on the assumptions made, including the

debtor balances with Group companies. forecast growth rate, profitability, terminal growth rates applied and discount rate
applied. This review was conducted with the support of our valuations team. As part of

Recovery of these assets is dependent upon future cash our review we benchmarked assumptions such as the terminal growth rate and inputs

flows which are required to be discounted. There is a risk  inio the calculation of the cost of capital (discount rate).

that forecasts for these future cash flows are not met or that

the cash flows have not been discounted at an We also considered the recoverability of intercompany debt in the Parent Company

appropriate rate. If the cash flows do not meet financial statements.

expectations the assefs may become impaired.

Inventory provisioning We obtained the aged inventory reports and recalculated the provision.
The Group was holding £15.1m of inventory af the year
end. There was considered to be a risk that old inventory
may become difficult to sell and thereby become
impaired.

We reviewed assumptions made in comparison fo the prior year and challenged
management where assumptions had either changed or no longer appeared
appropriate.
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We compared the aging of stock year on year to consider if stock was getting older
and questioned management on the increase in stock from the prior year.

For a sample of inventory items we reviewed sales post year end to consider if any
items were being valued below cost.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Hornby PLC continued

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Long Term Incentive Plan We reviewed the share option calculations provided by management and checked the
The Company introduced a long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)  inputs and assumptions info the model.

for certain employees during the year. The options are
linked 1o the profitability of the Company for the year The number of options that vest depends on meeting certain profit targets and therefore

ended 31 May 2022. We considered there to be a risk ~ We ensured that the options expected fo vest were consistent with the forecast profit for
that the assumptions used in calculating the charge for the  the year ended 31 May 2022.
year were incorrect.

Revenue recognition We reviewed the revenue recognition process and found the policy to be in
Revenue is recognised in accordance with the accounting  accordance with IFRS 15.

policy set out in the financial statements. We focus on the
risk of material misstatement in the recognition of revenue, ~ YVe performed detailed testing by selecting a sample of sales made in the year and

as a result of both fraud and error, because revenue is agreeing these through to invoices, despatch records and ultimately cash received.
material and is an important determinant of the Group's

fiabili We tested a sample of sales around the year end to ensure that cut off was
profitapility.

working appropriately.

Our audif procedures in relation to these matters were designed in the confext of our audit opinion as a whole. They were not designed fo
enable us fo express an opinion on these matters individually and we express no such opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other
than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except fo the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required fo defermine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
e the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial siatements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatfements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing fo report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

e the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 24 the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary fo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and Parent Company’s ability fo continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or fo cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK will always defect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Hoday 2163015

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

EXTENT TO WHICH THE AUDIT IS CAPABLE OF DETECTING IRREGULARITIES, INCLUDING FRAUD

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. VWe identified and assessed the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements from irregularities, whether due to fraud or error, and discussed these between our audit team
members. We then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the Company operates, focusing on those laws and
regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The laws and
regulations we considered in this confext were the Companies Act 2006 and Taxation legislation.

9dUDUIBA0SH

Audifing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations fo enquiry of the Directors
and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

We identified the greatest risk of material impact on the financial statements from irregularities, including fraud, fo be the override of controls
by management and the recognition of revenue. Our audit procedures to respond fo these risks included:

* enquiry of management about the Group's policies, procedures and related controls regarding compliance with laws and regulations and
if there are any known instances of non-compliance;

® examining supporting documents for all material balances, transactions and disclosures;

e review of the Board meeting minutes;

 enquiry of management and review and inspection of relevant correspondence with any legal firms;

e evaluafion of the selection and application of accounting policies related to subjective measurements and complex transactions;

¢ defailed testing of a sample of sales made during the year and around the year and agreeing these through to invoices and
despatch records;

e iesfing the appropriateness of a sample of significant journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements; and
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® review of accounting esfimates for biases.

Owing fo the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in the
financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. VWe are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Hornby PLC continued

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 20006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required fo sfafe to them in an
audifor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mot S

Mark Sisson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Crowe U.K. LLP

Riverside House
40-46 High Street
Maidstone

Kent MET4 T1JH

Q@ June 2021
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Group and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the Year Ended 31 March 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note £'000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 2 48,549 37,842 Q33 1,065
. B . (26795] ~ (2]/1740) B -
Gross profit 21,754 16,702 Q33 1,065
Distribution costs - . (6798] : (5,787) | . -
Seling ond morkeiing coss B 1 T
Adminisirative expenses o ST 15 S el SN L5 MO Ltcich g
Other operating [expenses)/income 4 (247) 181 - - |
Opgrating profit/(lossr)rbefore Exceptiongl items 7 4 778 - (2,742) (382) o (4) -g
Exceptional ifems 4 (217) (75) = (6,051) =
Operating profit/(loss) 2 567 [2817) (382 (6055
Finance income 3 3 : 3 175 7 175
Finance costs 3 @3 5 @0 Q1)
Nertrfrinance expense 7 3 | [331] : 16]2) [45) - (42)
Shc;rrer of profit of mvesirrnrems accounted for using the equity N ) - N
method 11 109 34 109 34
Préfif/(l.oss) before to*dﬁon - 7 4 | 345 : (3,395} . (3]8) o (6,063)
S B - 1018 ~ e B
Profit/(Loss) for the year after taxation 1,363 (3,395) (318) (6,063) g
Other comprehensiverirrrlcome . N §
lterﬁrsrthctt may be subéﬁuenﬂy rec|ossifiéar fo profit or loss: 5
Cash flow hedges, nef of fax - 7 (597] : a7 - -
Currrrerncy translation (|§éées)/gcins - 7 (187] B (332) 246 o (119)
Other comprehensiver tlbss)/income for the year, net of fax o N (784] : t85) . 246 - (119)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 579 (3,480) 72) (6,182)
Profit/(loss) per ordinary share
o B . 7082p ~ '267)p
. B . 7080p ~ '267)p

All results relate to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 37 to 70 form part of these accounts.
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Group and Company Statements of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets 1
Goodwill . 4,504 -
Infangible assefs 2,824 -
Property, plant and equipment 4105 -
Investments . 1,730 23415
figh of Use Assels 2575 B -
Deferred tax assets 2,030 - -
17,886 23,860 23,415
Currentassets -
nvenfories 14235 S
Trade and other receivables 6,525 | ...A48454
Derivotive financial instruments ey 00 - i
Cash and cash equivalents 5921 2 2
27116 26,797 48,520 48,456
e 0 S S
Current liabilities
Borowings ... o B
Trade and other payables (4,889) 6,59)
lease liabilies (384) -
Derivative financial instruments - = -
(5,273) (6,722) (6,5906)
Netcorentassets D107 2524 41798 41860
Non-current liabilities -
Borrowings ... T ) 5997
lease liabilifies (2.255) L - -
Deferred tax liabilities (150) - -
(2,593) (2,405) (5,689) (5207)
Net assets 38,257 37,005 59969 59,368
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 1 -
Share copial 1,669 e
Shore premum 52857 | 52857 50857
Capital redemption reserve EECT— SEI 22
Tondofon reserve 1802 [oe 262
Hedgng reserve e T
Other reserves 1,088 Lo 12l45 ) L1945
Accumulated losses (15,542) (17.578) (12,741) (13,0906)
Total equity 38,257 37005 59969 59,368

The notes on pages 37 to 70 form part of these accounts. The financial statements on pages 33 to 70 were approved by the Board of

Direcfors on @ June 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

&w

K Gould

Director

Registered Company Number: 01547390
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Group and Company Statements of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended 31 March 2021

Retained
Capital earnings/
Share Share redemption Translation Hedging Other  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves losses) equity
GROUP £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 1,253 38,587 55 (1,470) (131) 1,688 (14,183) 25,799
Loss for the year - - - - - - (3,395)  (3,395)
Other comprehensive [expensel/income for the year - - - (332) 247 - - (85)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - - (332) 247 - (3,395)  (3,480)
Transactions with owners '3‘9
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 416 14,270 - - - - - 14,686 f:_f_
Total transactions with owners 416 14,270 - - - - - 14,686 _?
Balance at 31 March and 1 April 2020 1,669 52,857 55 (1,802) 116 1,688 (17.578) 37005 S
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,363 1,363
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (187) (597) - - (784)
Share-based payments (Note 22) - - - - - - 673 673
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - - (187) (597) - 2,036 1,252
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,669 52,857 55 (1989 (481) 1,688 (15,542) 38,257
Retained
Capital earnings/
Share Share redemption Translation Other  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves losses) Equity ®
COMPANY £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 %
Balance at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 1,253 38,587 55 (1,143) 19145 (7033) 50,864 §
Loss for the year - - - - - 6,063) (6,063) 3
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (119) - - (119
Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (119) - (6,063) 6,182)

Transactions with owners

Net proceeds from issue of orr(ririnor\/ shorég . - 41(’) . 714,270 . o o . V . iA,ééé
Total transactions with owners 416 14,270 - - - - 14,686
Balance at 31 March and 1 April 2020 1,669 52,857 55 (1,262) 19,145 (13,096) 59,368
Loss for the year - - - - - (318) (318)
Other Vcrormprehensrirvre incomerfér the yeo?r . - o o o 246 . - V - 246
Sharebased payments Noe 22) -~ — &3 7
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year - - - 246 - 355 601
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,669 52,857 55 (1,016) 19145 (12,741) 59969

The notes on pages 37 to 70 form part of these accounts.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2021

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cosh ééneroted froﬁ%/(ﬁééd in operations 27 .................. 4,372 77777777 (3,241) ......................... 45 ...... : 114;672)
nterest paid B 75 uae 20)  [217)
Inrtrerrrersrtré\emem of \édéé Vp”oyments ...................... (165] 7777777 HOQ) ............................. B o
o ,r,e,c,e,ived/(pmd) ,,,,,,,, —— Qo ,,,,,,,,, - - .
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 4,222 (3,856) (174) (14,889)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchose of properh% p|ont and equipment 0 (4,249] 7777777 12,74787]) ............................. B -
Purchase of intangible assets o (726 237 B -
e 3 ,,,,,,,,, - ] 75 ,,,,,,, s
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (4,.972) (2,715) 175 175
Cash flows from financing activities
Pf(r);:rerérdrs from issuornrcrtércrjrfrordinory shares N ] SOOO ............................. B 1 SOOO
e B ( 314) ............................... - . ,'3],4)
l\rlérir(rrreioroyments to)/b%)rcrereds fom ABLfactlty . ( 1893) ............................. B .
e e B , - - .
R,e,p,é,y,rﬁ,em . B ( 8337) ............................... -
POymem - “O,m,”,y, - [462] ,,,,,,,, (,46,2) ............................... - .
P SUbSidi,&y,,U,h,demkmgs ............................... N - - -
Net cosh (used in)/ééﬁ;fdted from financing activities (462] 7777777 H77O ............................. B 1 47]5
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,212) 5,199 ]
Cash and cash equri\r/ér|rernrtrs af the beginning of the year 1
Effect of exchange rrdtrerrrrrwrévements (24) ]8 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 4,685 5921 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash and cash equivalens 5 4685 5921 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,685 5921 2 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2021

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the Parent’s functional currency and the Group's presentation currency. The figures
shown in the financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds.

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The consolidated Group and Parent Company financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assefs and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) af fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assefs and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may
differ from those estimates.

Going concern

The Group has in place an Asset Based Lending (ABL) facility with PNC Credit Limited which is a floating facility based on the current asset
position capped at £12 million through to June 2023. The PNC Covenants are customary operational covenants applied on a monthly basis.
In addition, the Group entered a committed £9.0 million loan facility with Phoenix Asset Management Partners Limited (the Group's largest
shareholder) if it should be required which is a three-year rolling facility.

The Group has prepared trading and cash flow forecasts for a period of three years, which have been reviewed and approved by the
Board. On the basis of these forecasts, the facilities with PNC and Phoenix and after a detailed review of trading, financial position and
cash flow models (taking COVID-19 info account], the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have
adequate resources fo continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has the rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assefs given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred or assumed af the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assefs acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured inifially af their fair values af the acquisition date, irespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Infercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator of the asset concerned. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Adoption of new and revised standards

The following standards and interpretations relevant to the Group are in issue but are not yet effective and have not been applied in the
historical financial information. In some cases these standards and guidance have not been endorsed for use.

e |AS 1 Presentation of liabilities as current or non-current
e |AS 1 Disclosure of accounting policies

e |AS 8 definition of accounting estimates

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue is mostly from product sales and is recognised as follows:

(a) Sale of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entfity has delivered products to the cusfomer. The customer is either a frade customer
or the consumer when sold through Hornby concessions in various retail outlets, or via the internet.

(b) Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised af the later of when the performance obligation is satisfied and when the sales or usage occurs.

(c) Sales returns

The Group establishes a refund liability (included in trade and other payables) at the period end that reduces revenue in anticipation of
cusfomer returns of goods sold in the period. Accumulated experience is used fo estimate such returns at the time of sale at a portfolio
level (expected value method).

(d) Hornby Visitor Centre
Revenue is generated from the ficket and product sales at our Visitor Centre in Margate and recognised af the point of sale.

Dividend income in the Company is recognised upon receipt. Revenue from management services are recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

Exceptional items

Where items of income and expense included in the stafement of comprehensive income are considered to be material and exceptional in
nature, separate disclosure of their nature and amount is provided in the financial statements. These items are classified as exceptional items.
The Group considers the size and nature of an item both individually and when aggregated with similar items when considering whether it is
material, for example impairment of intangible assets or restructuring costs.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided fo the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Board of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Operating profit of each reporting segment includes revenue and expenses directly aftributable to or able to be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Segment assefs and liabilities are those operating assefs and liabilities directly aftributable to or that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis.

Business combinations

Goodwill arising on a business combination before and after 1 April 2004, the date of fransition fo IFRS, is not subject to amortisation but
fested for impairment on an annual basis. Infangible assets, excluding goodwill, arising on a business combination subsequent fo 1 April
2004, are separately identified and valued, and subject to amortisation over their estimated economic lives.

Associate with equity accounting
The investment in December 2017 in 49% of LCD Enterprises limited is included in these accounts using the Equity Method.
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Associates are all enfiies over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit and loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. VWhen the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds ifs interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does nof recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group defermines af each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent fo ‘share of profit/(loss) of associates’ in the income statement.

Gains resulting from upstream and downsfream transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only fo the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the fransaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Any dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the
income statement.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating fo the entity sold. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or Groups
of cash-generating units that are expected fo benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified according to
operating segment. Goodwill is recorded in the currency of the cash generating unit fo which it is allocated.

Intangibles

Other infangibles include brands, customer lists and computer software. They are recognised initially at fair value determined in accordance
with appropriate valuation methodologies and subjected fo amortisation and annual impairment reviews, as follows:

(a) Brand names
Brand names, acquired as part of a business combination, are capitalised af fair value as at the date of acquisition. They are carried af
their fair value less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straightline
method to allocate the fair value of brand names over their estimated economic life of 15-20 years.

(b) Customer lists

Customer lists, acquired as part of a business combination, are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. They are carried af
their fair value less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the sfraightline
method to allocate the fair value of customer relationships over their estimated economic life of ten years. Customer lists have been valued
according fo discounted incremental operating profit expected to be generated from each of them over their useful lives of 10 years.

(c) Computer software and website costs
Computer software expenditure is capitalised af the value af the date of acquisition and depreciated over a useful economic life
of 4-6 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets revalued prior fo the transition fo IFRS use this valuation as
deemed cost at this date. Other property, plant and equipment are shown at hisforical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes
the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable fo bringing the asset fo its working condition for its infended use.

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each asset, on a straightline basis (with the exception of tools
and moulds) over its expected useful life to ifs residual value, as follows:

Plant and equipment - 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

Tools and moulds are depreciated af varying rates in line with the related product production on an item-by-item basis up to a maximum of
four years. Tools and moulds purchased but not ready for production are not depreciated.

Impairment of non-current assets

Assefs that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumsiances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is considered to be the higher of ifs value in use and fair value less costs o sell. In order to assess impairment, assets are grouped info
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Cash flows used to assess impairment are
discounted using appropriate rates faking info account the cost of equity and any risks relevant to those assets.

Investments

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any impairment. Investments in associates
are recognised using the equity method of accounting, where the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profits or losses of the investee. Dividend income is shown separately in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is predominantly determined using the firstin, firstout ['FIFO') method.
Alternative methods may be used when proven to generate no material difference. The cost of finished goods comprise ifem cost, freight and
any product specific development costs.

Net realisable value is based on anticipated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provisions
are made against those stocks considered to be obsolefe or excess to requirements on an ifem-by-item basis.

The replacement cost, based upon latest invoice prices before the balance sheet date, is considered to be higher than the balance sheet
value of inventories at the year end due fo price rises and exchange fluctuations. It is not considered practicable fo provide an accurate
estimate of the difference af the year end date.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group and Company's statements of financial position when the Group
or Company becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised inifially af fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment.
To establish the provision for impairment, the Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of twelve months before 31 March 2021 and the
corresponding hisforical credit losses experienced within this period.
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Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according fo the substance of the contractual arrangements entered info.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual inferest in the assets of the Group and Company affer deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group and Company are recorded af the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Refund liability

Provisions for sales returns are recognised for the products expected fo be refumned. Accumulated experience is used fo estimate such returns
at the time of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement includes cash in hand, deposits at banks, other liquid invesiments with
original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts or loans where there is no right of set off are shown within
borrowings in current or non-current liabilities on the balance sheet as appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of fransaction costs| and the redemption value is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective inferest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliies are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred unfil the draw-down occurs and subsequently amortised over the life of
the facility. To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method.

Taxation including deferred tax

Corporation fax, where payable, is provided on taxable profits at the current rate.
The taxation liabilities of certain Group undertakings are reduced wholly or in part by the surrender of losses by fellow Group undertakings.

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences af the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assefs and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused fax assefs and unused fax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income fax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset fo be utilised.

Deferred income tax assefs and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right o offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities, and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an infention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax rates that are expected fo apply to the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is seffled, based on tax rates (and tax laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted af the balance sheet date. Tax relating
to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Employee benefit costs

During the year the Group operated a defined contribution money purchase pension scheme under which it pays contributions based upon
a percentage of the members' basic salary. The scheme is administered by trustees either appointed by the Company or elected by the
members (to constitute one third minimum).

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income according to the year in
which they are payable.

Further information on pension costs and the scheme arrangements is provided in Note 25.

The Group has a profit share scheme for all employees below Executive level. This scheme commences in 2020/21 with a 5% bonus for all
when the Group breaks even. Thereafter, 15% of all Group operating profit will be shared between the employees every year.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares issued are shown as share capital af nominal value. The premium received on the sale of shares in excess of the nominal
value is shown as share premium within tofal equity.

Share-based payments

The Group has issued share options to Executive Directors. The fair value of the award granted is recognised as an employee expense within
the Income Statement with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date and allocated over the vesting
period based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is
any indication that the number of share options expected fo vest differs from previous estimates. The fair value of the grants is measured using
the Black-Scholes model.

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group's operations expose it fo a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, market
interest rates, credit risk and its hquidif\/ position. The Group has in p|oce a risk management programme that seeks to limit adverse effects on
the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency financial insfruments.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks against Sterling primarily on transactions in US Dollars. It enters info forward currency
contracts fo hedge the cash flows of its product sourcing operation [i.e. it buys US Dollars forwards in exchange for Sterling) and looks
forward six to twelve months on a rolling basis at forecasted purchase volumes. The policy framework requires hedging between 70%
and 100% of anticipated import purchases that are denominated in US Dollars. The Company has granted Euro denominated
infercompany loans fo subsidiary companies that are franslated to Sterling at statutory period ends thereby creating exchange gains or
losses. The loans to the subsidiaries, Homby Deutschland GmbH, Hornby lalia s.r.l. and Hornby France S.A.S. are classified as longterm
loans and therefore the exchange gains and losses on consolidation are reclassified to the translation reserve in Other Comprehensive
Income as per IAS 21. The loan fo the branch in Spain is classified as a long-term loan however repayable on a shorfer timescale than
those of the other subsidiaries and therefore the exchange gains or losses are taken to Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits, Asset Based lending facilities and shareholder loans. The Group
borrows, principally in Sterling, at floating rates of inferest to meet shortterm funding requirements. At the year end the Group's borrowings
were zero.

(c) Credit risk
The Group manages ifs credif risk through a combination of internal credit management policies and procedures.
(d) Liquidity risk
At 31 March 2021 the UK had a £12 million Asset Based Lending facility with PNC Credit Limited and a £9 million loan facility with

Phoenix Asset Management Partners. The funding needs are determined by monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. The Group
regularly monitors its performance against its banking covenants to ensure compliance.

42 Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Derivative financial instruments
To manage exposure o foreign currency risk, the Group uses foreign currency forward contracts, also known as derivative financial
instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered info and are subsequently remeasured at their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The
accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so the
nature of the item being hedged.

(a) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in the
hedging reserve within equity and through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within operating expenses.

Amounts accumulated in Other Comprehensive Income are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss (for instance when the forecast purchase that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating fo the
effective portion of forward foreign exchange contracts hedging import purchases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income within ‘cost of sales. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for
example, invenfory) the gains and losses previously deferred in Other Comprehensive Income are fransferred from Other Comprehensive
Income and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods

sold in the case of inventory.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised in income when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. When a forecast fransaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss is
immediately fransferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments are not considered effective and do not qualify for hedge accounting. Such derivatives are classified at fair
value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income and changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounfing are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Fair value estimation
The fair values of shortterm deposits, loans and overdrafts with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate fo their

book values.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 19.

Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the relevant functional currency af the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
except when deferred and disclosed in Other Comprehensive Income as qualifying cash flow hedges. Monetary assefs and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are
faken fo the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains/losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income relating fo foreign currency loans and other foreign
exchange adjusiments are included within operafing profit.

On consolidation, the Statement of Comprehensive Income and cash flows of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Sterling using average
rates that existed during the accounting period. The balance sheets of foreign subsidiaries are translated into Sterling af the rafes of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising on the franslation of opening and closing net assefs are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 43

MBIAIDAQ

Hoday s16ajo1jg

9JUDUIBA0S)

I
3
2
3
o,
g
%)
=4
g
)
(]
3
(]
3
=
©w




Notes to the Financial Statements continved

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Dividend distribution

Final dividends are recorded in the Statement of Changes in Equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company's
shareholders. Interim dividends are recorded in the period in which they are approved and paid.

Furlough scheme

Hornby PLC has accounted for government furlough grant receivables under IAS 20 and recognised a credit fo match the related employee
costs as and when they are received. Under IAS 20, it is permissible fo present the grant and the expenses on either a gross or net basis.
However, any related balance sheet items (i.e. grant receivable and amounts payable to employees) cannot be netted off. Any decision o
fop up the furlough payments to employees (e.g. by choosing fo pay more than the government guaranteed 80% of salary up to a maximum
of £2,500 per month) is a voluntary decision and should not be provided for in advance. This is because there is no obligation to make
these additional payments and fo do so would constitute providing for future operating costs. At year end all furlough payments have been
received and no staff are on furlough.

Critical estimates and judgements in applying the accounting policies

The Group's estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjusiment fo the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill, intangibles and investments

The Group tests annually whether any goodwill, investment or intangible asset has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units (CGUs| have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The critical areas of estimation applied within the
impairment reviews conducted include the weighted average cost of capital used in discounting the cash flows of the cash generating
units, the forecast margin growth rate, the growfh rate in perpetuity of the cash flows and the forecast operating profifs of the cash
generafing unifs. The judgements used within this assessment are set out within Nofe 8.

(b) Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-setiled share-based payments to Directors and executives measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-seftled share-based payments is expensed on a straightline basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected fo vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment fo other reserves.

Other estimates and assumptions:
(a) Inventory provision

Whenever there is a substantiated risk that an item of sfock’s sellable value may be lower than its actual stock value, a provision for the
difference between the two values is made. Management review the stock holdings on a regular basis and consider where a provision
for excess or obsolefe stock should be made based on expected demand for the stock and ifs condition.

(b) Receivables provision

The Group reviews the amount of credit loss associated with ifs frade receivables, infercompany receivables and other receivables based
on forward looking estimates that consider current and forecast credit conditions as opposed to relying on past historical default rates.
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(c] Fair valve of derivatives
The fair value of the financial derivatives is defermined by the mark to market value at the year end date with any movement in fair value

going through Other Comprehensive Income.

(d) Refund liability
The refund liability is based on accumulated experience of returns af the time of sale at a portfolio level [expected value method).

Because the number of products returned has been steady for years, it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. The validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are reassessed at each reporting

date. The right fo the returned goods is measured by reference fo the carrying amount of the goods.

. @«
(e) IFRS 16 Estimates 3
The Group makes judgement to estimate the incremental borrowing rate used to measure lease liabilities based on expected third party &
financing costs when the inferest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. This is explained further in the Leases accounting il
policy. Where leases include breck dates the management have made a judgement these will not be exercised. '§
]
Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies:
(a) Recognition of deferred tax on losses
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, fo
the extent that it is probable that the taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet dafe and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset o be utilised.
(b) Going concern
The Directors apply judgement fo assess whether it is appropriate for the Group to be reported as a going concern by considering the
business activities and the Group's principal risks and uncertainties. Defails of the consideration made are included within the Directors o
Report (page 23) and the basis of preparation (page 37). %
)
=
A number of assumptions and estimates are involved in arriving af this judgement including management's projections of future trading 9
0
3

performance and expectations of the external economic environment.

Other judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies:

(a) Equity accounting for LCD Enterprises Limited
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised af cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased fo recognise the Group's
share of the change in net assefs of LCD Enterprises Limited since the date of the acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

2. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Management has defermined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board (chief operating decision-maker) that are
used to make sfrategic decisions.

The Board considers the business from a geographic perspective. Geographically, management considers the performance in the UK, USA,
Spain, ltaly and the rest of Europe.

Although the USA segment does not meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8, management has concluded that this segment should
be reported, as it is closely monitored by the Board as it is outside Europe.

The Company is a holding Company operating in the UK with ifs results given in the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on page
33 and its assets and liabilities given in the Company Statement of Financial Position on page 34. Other Company information is provided
in the other notes fo the accounts.

Year ended 31 March 2021

Total
Restof  Reportable Intra
UK USA Spain Italy Europe Segments Group Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue — External 37,428 5,233 1,012 1,719 3,157 48,549 - 48,549
— Other segments 2,603 - - - - 2,603 (2,603) -

Operating loss)/profit 99 79 56l 10 [77) 567 - 57

Finance income — External 3 = = = = 3 = 3
o Segmems - 486 e 486 - (486) .
o e B (308) e [3) - (2” B (2] - (334) S (334)

— Other segments

Share of profit of investments accounted for

using the equity method 109 = = = = 109 = 109
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 1,083 (279) (279) (28) (152) 345 - 345
Taxation 1,018 = = = = 1,018 = 1,018
Profit/(Loss) for the year 2,101 (28) (152) 1,363 - 1,363
Segment assets 59,490 (116) 4,199 71,645 = 71,645
- 3019 o o (63] B 2956 o 2956
Total assets 46,067 2,245 89 (285) 743 48,859 = 48,859
Segment liabilities (17,628) (6,235) (5,213) (811) 6,607)  (36,494) - (36,494)
less infercompony payables 8098 5687 5103 503 6351 25742 - 25742
PR T ]50 S ]50 o ]50
Total liabilities (@,380) (548) (110) (308) (256)  (10,602) = (10,602
Other segment items

i 4953 I ]8 o 2 I 2 4975 o 4975
S ]701 I ]7 I 5 I (2) o ]72] S ]72]

Amortisation of infangible assets 533

Less intercompany receivables

Net foreign exchange on intercompa

All transactions between Group companies are on normal commercial ferms.
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Year ended 31 March 2020

Total
Rest of  Reportable Intra
UK USA Spain Italy Europe  Segments Group Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue — External 28,622 3,263 1,199 1,469 3,289 37,842 - 37,842
- Other segments 3088 - - - - 3088 (3088 -
Operating (loss)/profit o4 o018 e N 0 @281 - [2817)
Fnce cosl - Externd T S N
T Othersegments 80 T T 0T3S BT g
Finance income — External (579) (29) (2) (3) 2) 615) - (615) L
“Otersegnens 603 - @7 heal vy s s - |f
Share of profit of investments accounted for +
using the equity method 34 - - - - 34 - 34
(Loss) before taxation (2,034) (1,044) (237) (4) (76) (3,395) - (3,395)
Taxation - - - - - - - -
(Loss) for the year (2,034) (1,044) (237) (4) (76) (3,395) - (3,395)
Segment assets 56,516 2913 6,101 (128) 4,374 69,776 - 69776
Less intercompany receivables . 7(17,471847). . 71637). 7 (5,@68). . 7(297]. 7 (3,579). 7(277,71237). — 7(727,1”23)
Add tax assefs 2095 - - {65 2030 - 2030
Total assets 41127 23850 133 (222) 705 44,683 ~ 44683
Segment liabiliies (15552)  (6,841] (5163 (744)  (6,651) (34951) ~ (34951 §
Less infercompany payables o 8(’)55 o ()347 o 50()4 - 524 o (7'3,57337 . 7277,1237 . ”27,]723 §
Add tox liabilties 10 - - - - 150 - %0 3
Total liabilities (6,747) (494) (99) (220) (118) (7,678) - (7.678)
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 2698 16 1 3 - 278 - 2718
Depreciation S o20% 15 6 3 - 2100 - 2100
Net foreign exchange on intercompany |oons. 7 7(1487). e 7(17487). B (174718)
Amortisation of infangible assets - 603 e 6037 R 603

All transactions between Group companies are on normal commercial ferms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

3. NET FINANCE EXPENSE

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Finance costs:
Interesf é%pense orrr{kr)rorrowingrs” (85] 7777777 (165) .............................. B -
Interesf é%pense éﬁréfrwcreholdre'r' Vlocm [84] 7777777 (281) .............................. B -
Iterest slement of leases 165 neo) B _
Interesf é%pense orr{irnrtercomprcrtﬁry borrovrvrirrwrgrs ................................... - . (220) ..... : ”(217)
(334) (615) (220) (217)
Finance income:
o ﬁékesr ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3 ,,,,,,,,, . 3 ............................... - -
InTeresTV 7ir£:ome or%rirnrtrercompdrrwryr oans . T ] 75 ...... 175
3 3 175 175
Net finance expense (331) 612) (45) 42)
4. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
The following items have been included in arriving at loss before taxation
Stoff costs (Note 24] A 90257 8014 834 513
lnvemo,r,i,e,& ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e, . T
- CosT”orfrinventorriVersr Vrecogmsrerar ds an er><rpr>rernse (inc\rurared in corsrtrcrf sles) 22,429 77777777 18240 .............................. B -
- lncre,és,,e . Stoc,k, ébvision LT 27 ,,,,,,,,, ]86 ............................... - -
Deprea&,ion . p,r,o,b,emy/ ploh},énd equib,n%ém: ............................................... i 000 e
- Owﬁéa o RO SOOI ]72] ,,,,,,,,,, Q]OO ............................... - -
. Legs,e,d, ,Ossets ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 492 ,,,,,,,,, 528 ............................... - -
Repctir;crlrnd moinrtérnrdnce exﬁéﬁaiture or717;7:>7rropert\/, p|0m and eétﬁbment ........................... 8] 777777777 75 .............................. B -
Research and de\}éiébment e*#énditure 77777 . ],320 77777777 ],244 .............................. B -
|ncrec|srérirn impoirrrrnrerﬁi of Trod”errreceivoarers ..................................... . (1]8) .............................. B -
Other operating expenses/(income):
- Foreirgrrrwrexchonrgré Vcrm mdmé Vtrrcnsocticrarr{s” 14 77777777 (260) .............................. B -
— Net Virrnrbod of féréién exchénrnrge on intrérrcr(rjmponyr\rc;dns (25] 7777777 (71747178) .............................. B -
~ Amorfisation of infangible assefs 533 603 B _

48 Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021



MBIAIDAQ

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Exceptional items comprise:
— Restructuring costs 136 71 = 24
- Refinancing = 7 = 7
- Relocation 75 - = -
— Coronavirus impact - (3) - -
— Impairment of receivable = - = 6,020 g
@
211 75 - 6,051 @
Fy
<
The exceptional items fofalling £211,000 (2020: £75,000) include resfructuring costs relafing fo redundancy costs and dilapidation costs on S
movement of Headquarters from Sandwich to Margate. These are classified as exceptional as they are one off, non-recurring costs.
Services provided by the Company’s auditors and network firms
During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and network firms
as detailed below:
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company's audifors for the audit of Parent Company and
consolidated accounts 31 30 11 10 o
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other services: %
- The auditing of accounts of the Company’s subsidiaries 39 36 = - §
- Auditrelated assurance services = - = - o
— Tax services 6 - = -
76 66 11 10

Current year subsidiary fees relate fo Homby ltalia (£6,000) and Hornby Hobbies Limited (£33,000).

In the current financial year the level of non-audit fees are £6k and related fo tax services and was within the 1:1 rafio to audit fees as per

Audit Committee policy.

5. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/CHARGE
Analysis of tax (credit)/charge in the year

Group Company m

2021 2020 2021 2020 §

£/000 £/000 £/000 £/000 s

Current tax - - - - 3-;

UK To>r<<rjrfion: %

- Ad{urs%rrnems in réébed of prriérr years - (92] Z
Deferred tax (Note 20) - - - -
Origmrorﬁron and ré\;érso\ of Terrﬁrporory diFr{éVrences . [9261 : 22] I -
Effect érfriox rate c%nge on ébéning bol(rjrnrce T B (221) I -
Total tax credit to the loss before tax (1,018) - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

5. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/CHARGE continued

The tax for the year differs to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. Any differences are explained below:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Loss before taxation 345 (3,395) (318) (43)

loss or717cr>rrdinory Orcrﬂrvhies mulrﬁfryiied by rdté of N B B 2

Corporation tax in UK of 19% (2020: 19%) 65 (645) (60) (8)

EHGCTS,C,),{:, @ - . O N
Ad{usTrﬁrérrﬂs o Toxrirnr respect Vorfrbrior yeo;s” N (92]

Permorrwrernrtdiﬁerenrcrers (138] : 20 8 .

Non 10’)’('0'b|e incorrnrer . [21] : m((’)) . (21) - lé)

Differeﬁgé on overééos rates Vorfrtrox . [40] : ”1733) B

Deferre,a, ,tOX - re,c,égmsed . 885 I ... M

Remeorsrurrremem ofrcrireferred tcr1>r<” - (221) | - -

Total taxation (1,018) - - _

The Company's profits for this accounting year are taxed at an effective rate of 19%. The UK corporation tax rate was due to decrease to
17% from 1 April 2020 however the rate has been kept at 19%, being substantively enacted on 17 March 2020.

UK deferred tax balances have been restated in these accounts and carried forward at a rate of 19% from 1 April 2020.

The latest corporation tax rate change fo 23% announced on the 3 March 2021 Budget has yet to be substantively enacted as af 31 March
2021 and therefore is not reflected in these notes. This rate change, once subsfantively enacted, does not come into effect until 1 April 2023
and therefore only timing differences expected fo reverse after this date will be recognised for Deferred Tax purposes at 23%, those expected
fo reverse before this date will continue fo be recognised at 19%.

Unrecognised deferred tax relates fo UK and overseas subsidiaries and is not recognised, except to the extent of the prior year movement in
the change in tax rate nofed above. This is due fo the Directors taking the view that deferred tax should only be recognised to the extent
taxable profits are likely to be achieved. More detail can be found in Note 20.

6. DIVIDENDS

No interim or final dividends were paid in relation fo the year ended 31 March 2020 and no interim dividend has been paid in relation to
the year ended 31 March 2021. The Directors are not proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic profit/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

For diluted profit/{loss) per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive
pofential ordinary shares that have satisfied the appropriate performance criteria at 31 March 2021.

The underlying profit/(loss) per share is shown to present a clearer view of the trading performance of the business. Management identified
the following items, whose inclusion in performance distorts underlying trading performance: net foreign exchange (gains)/losses on
infercompany loans which are dependent on exchange rafe fluctuations and can be volatile, and the amortisation of intangibles which results
from historical acquisitions. Additionally, share-based payments and exceptional items including relocation, refinance and restructuring costs
are one off items and therefore have also been added back in calculating underlying profit/(loss| per share.
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Reconciliations of the loss and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below.

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
e e Lo/ numberof Per-share
earnings shares amount earnings shares amount
£'000 ‘000s pence £000 ‘000s pence
REPORTED
Basic profit per share
Profit atfributable to ordinary shareholders 1,363 166,929 0.82 (3,737(7?5) W27,7]7<776 - 7(72.6777) ‘_3-?
Effect of dilutive share options - 4,127 . R S ‘-§.
Diluted profit per share 1,363 171,056 0.80 (3,395) 127196 (2.67) _g’P
o
UNDERLYING 3
Profit atfributable to ordinary shareholders 1,363 166,929 0.82 (3,73;795) 127,7]7‘79() - (2()7]
Share-based payments 545 033 -
Amortisation of infangibles 432 = 026 184 - 014
Restructuring costs 110 = 0.07 58 - OO5
Refinancing = = . 6 - 000
Relocation 61 = 0.04 o S
Net foreign exchange translation adjustments - - - (]23) . V(VO.]VCV)I
Underlying basic profit/EPS 2,511 166,929 1.50 (3,270) 127196 (2.57) o
Underlying diluted profit/EPS 2,511 171,056 1.47 (3,270) 127,196 (2.57) %
3
The above numbers used to calculate the EPS for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 have been fax effected at the rate of 19%. %
8. GOODWILL
GROUP £000
COST
AT Al 2020 13055
Exchange odiustments . (73)
At 31 March 2021 13,052
AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 8,491
Net book amount at 31 March 2021 4,56] T
COST 3
AT AR 2010 13054 o
chonge adsnens R ' H
At 31 March 2020 13,055 3
AGGREGATEIMPARMENT R :
AT Aprl 2019 and 31 March 2020 8491
Net book amount at 31 March 2020 4,564
Net book amount at 31 March 2019 4,563

The Company has no goodwill.
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8. GOODWILL continued

The goodwill has been allocated to cash-generating units and a summary of carrying amounts of goodwill by geographical segment
[representing cash-generating units) at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows:

UK USA France Germany Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 3,992 Q 364 196 4,561
At 31 March 2020 3092 10 364 198 4,564

Goodwill allocated to the above cash-generating units of the Group has been measured based on benefits each geographical segment is
expected to gain from the business combination.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on geography. Budgeted revenue was based on expected levels of activity given
results to date, together with expected economic and market condifions. Budgeted operating profit was calculated based upon
management’s expectation of operafing costs appropriate fo the business as reflected in the business plan.

The relative risk adjusted (or 'beta’] discount rate applied reflects the risk inherent in hobby based product companies. The 31 March 2021
forecasts are based on a 4 year business plan for the years ending 31 March 2022 to 31 March 2025. The 31 March 2020 forecasts are
based on a 4 year business plan for the years ending 31 March 2021 to 31 March 2024. Cash flows beyond these years are extrapolated
using an estimated 2.0% year on year growth rate. The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 9.9% (2020: 99%) which
management believes is appropriate for all territories.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

UK

UK (Airfix &
GROUP (Corgi) Humbrol) France Germany
Gross Margin' 63.7% 64.5% 570% 56.7%
Growth rafe to perpetuity? 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

1. Average of the variable yearly gross margins used over the period 21'22 to 28'29.

2. Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period reflecting the long term future growth rate of the economy.

UK

UK (Airfix &
GROUP (Corgi) Humbrol) France Germany
Gross Margin' 61.0% 61.1% 58.7% 54.6%
Growth rafe to perpetuity? 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

1. Average of the variable yearly gross margins used over the period 20'21 to 27'28.

2. Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period.
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the operating segments.

For the UK CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by £25.6 million. A reduction of the
average gross margin fo respectively 53.8% for Corgi and 50.2% for Airfix/Humbrol, or a rise in discount rafe to respectively 22.8% for
Corgi and 54.9% for Airfix/Humbrol would remove the remaining headroom.

For the France CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by £18.3 million. A reduction of the
average gross margin fo .2%, or a rise in discount rafe to 290.2% would remove the remaining headroom.

For the Germany CGU, the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by £20.7million. A reduction of
the average gross margin to 11.8%, or a rise in discount rafe to 328.0% would remove the remaining headroom.
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
Software and
Brand names Customer lists Website Total
GROUP £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
cost
AlApil2020 4914 1,415 3450 9779
Additers - - 6 76 g
At 31 March 2021 4914 1,415 4,176 10,505 g-
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATON ,‘ ,‘ e (3
At 1 April 2020 3,212 1,415 2,328 6,955 '§
N(E‘H‘c;rge for the e : 227 : = : 306 D 533 *
At 31 March 2021 3,439 1,415 2,634 7,488
Net book amount at 31 March 2021 1,475 - 1,542 3,017
Computer
Software and
Brand names Customer lists Website Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £000
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
cosT
Moo a4 ams 3o ose |
Additions - - 237 237 3
At 31 March 2020 4914 1,415 3,450 Q779 5
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
AL Apil 2019 . . 2085 1415 1952 6352
Chorge@ortheyecrﬁr . . - 227 o R 376 - VC)O?;
At 31 March 2020 3,212 1,415 2,328 6,955
Net book amount at 31 March 2020 1,702 - 1,122 2,824

All amortisation charges in the year have been charged in other operating expenses. The Company held no intangible assefs.
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and Motor Tools and

equipment Vehicles moulds Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £'000
COST
At T April 2050 H 1,529 55 67,477 69,061
Exchange od']‘L'J‘sTments : (53) (m - (54)
Additions at cuc;sf : 125 - 4,124 4,249
Disposals : (76) - - (76)
At 31 March 2021 1,525 54 71,601 73,180
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At T April 2050 H 1,237 42 63,617 64,896
Exchange od'y‘L'J‘sTmems : (41) (m - (41)
Charge for th; year : 130 4 1,587 1,721
Disposals : (76) - - (76)
At 31 March 2021 1,251 45 65,204 66,500
Net book amount at 31 March 2021 274 9 6,397 6,680
Depreciation is charged in the Group's statement of comprehensive income within Administrative expenses.

Plant and Motor Tools and

equipment Vehicles moulds Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £'000
COST
AVT”]VAFV)r” 010 ],575 754 ()5,677 (’)(’)70(’)
Echange odustmenss N
Addfionsatcost 8 - 2400 248
Disposdls sy - - sy
At 31 March 2020 1,529 55 67,477 69,061
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AVT”TVAVFVN” 010 ],646 37 (')],é40 - 67279273
Echange odustmenss e X
Chorge for heyear 39 4 777 200
Disposcls s - = sy
M3 Mach2020 127 4 6367 6489%
Net book amount at 31 March 2020 202 13 3,860 4165
Net book amount at 31 March 2019 529 17 3,237 3,783

The Company does not hold any property, plant and equipment.
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11. INVESTMENTS

The Group holds a direct investment in LCD Enterprises Limited (LCD’), holding 49% of ordinary shares. The company is based in South
Wales registered at Unit 6 119 Ystrad Road, Fforestfach, Swansea, Wales, SA5 4JB. This investment is included in the consolidated financia
statements using the equity method. The last accounts were of LCD were drawn up to 31 December 2020. As an associate it does not have
the same accounting year end.

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Summarised Financial Information of LCD
As at 31 March 2021 %)
Current Assefs 2,702 2277 g
Non-current assets 2,130 2,244 ;
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Lo z
Current Liabilfies (2,268) 2,182) K
For the period ended 31 March
Revenues 2,237 3,024
Profit affer tax 223 70
Group
The movements in the net book value of interests in associated undertakings are as follows:
Interests in
associated
undertakings at o
valuation b
£000 3
=
AtT April 2019 - LOQQ g
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method 34 ®
At 31 March and 1 April 2020 1,730
Share of profit of invesiments accounted for using the equity method 109
At 31 March 2021 1,839
Company
The movements in the net book value of interests in subsidiary and associated undertakings are as follows:
Loans to
Interests in Interests in subsidiary
subsidiary associate  undertakings at
undertakings at  undertakings at cost Total
valuation £'000  valuation £000 £000 £000 -
At 1 April 2020 17336 1,730 4,349 23,415 §
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method - 109 - 109 g
ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene ceeaene e ceeaene e ceeaene e oo e e e w
Capital contribution relating to share-based payment 336 - - 336 2
3
At 31 March 2021 17,672 1,839 4,349 23,860 2
At 1 April 2019 [restated) 17336 1,696 4,349 23,381 “
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method - 34 - 34
At 31 March 2020 17336 1,730 4,349 23,415

Inferest was charged on loans to subsidiary undertakings at Sterling three-month Libor + 3.6%.

Loans are unsecured and exceed five years” maturity.

Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 55



Notes to the Financial Statements continved

11. INVESTMENTS continued
Group subsidiary undertakings

Details of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out below. Hornby Hobbies limited is engaged in the development, design, sourcing and
distribution of models. Hornby America Inc., Homby ltalia s.r.l., Hornby France S.A.S., Hornby Espaiia S.A. and Homby Deutschland GmbH
are distributors of models. Hornby Industries Limited and H&M (Systems) Limited are dormant companies. All subsidiaries are held directly by

Homby PLC.

Description of

Proportion of nominal value
of issued shares held

Country of incorporation, registration and business shares held Group % Company %
Hornby Hobbies Limited Westwood, Margate, Kent CT9 4JX, UK Ordinary shares 100 100
HrchVrrAby Amerrrircro Inc. - 3900 VlrndustrwarrrE, Fife,r WA 98424, USAV . - (rjrrainory sFérest 7 ]OO - ]VCV)O
Hornby Espafia S.A C/Federico Chueca, S/N, E28806 AICALA DE HENARES Spain ~ Ordinary shares 100 100
Horrby ltalia 5.1 Vicle dei Coduf, 52/A6 25030 Castel Mella (Brescial, oy~ Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby France SA.S. 31 Bis rue des longs Pres, 92100 Boulogne, Bilancout, France ~~ Ordinary shares 100 100
Horby Deutschlond GmbH  Képpelsdorfer StiaBe 226, D96515 Sonneberg, Germony ~~ Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby Industies Limiied ~ Westwood, Margate, Kent CTO 4%, UK © Ordinary shares 100 100
H&M [Systems] Limited ~ Westwood, Margate, Kent CT9 4)X, UK " Ordinary shares 100 100
12. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Motor  Fixtures, Fittings
Property Vehicles  and Equipment Total

GROUP £000 £000 £000 £'000
CosT
AVT”]VAVE)rH 200 2,é¢8 7]62 WH - 737,107]7
Addfionsatcost A78 125 6 609
A3 Mach 2021 337 37 17 3710
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AVT”TVAVFr)rﬂ 2020 445 76 7 ”52787
Chorge for e yeor 406 80 6 492
e o o Lo ]OQO
Net book an;;unt at 31 Marchw202'l 2,525 161 4 2,690

56 Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Motor  Fixtures, Fitfings
Property Vehicles  and Equipment Total
GROUP £'000 £000 £000 £000
COST
AL Al 2010 2803 105 1 3,000
Addfionsotcost s & 9
AVTV\;BV]V Morch 2020 2,é¢8 717(7?2 V”H 737,10717
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
A Al 2000 _ _ - -
Chorge for the year a5 o7 528
A3 Mach2020 a5 2% 7 5%
Netbook amount at 31 March2020 2453 17 4 2573
13. INVENTORIES
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Finished goods 15,152 14,235 - -
s A ]5]52 ,,,,,,,,, ]4/,2,,35 ............................. B .
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of inventory is as follows:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Ar T April 1,179 Q93
Provision for invéﬁrtg)rr\r/r irrrnrpoirment 77777777777777777777 207 : ]86
Inventory vvriﬂenr offdurmg thevyear (160) -
Exchange od{usirrrnrerﬁirsr 77777777777777777777777 (21) ()
At 31 March 1,205 1179
14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
CURRENT:
Trade }ércreivob|esr a 5,7]7C7)4 ........................... B -
less: |oss 70||owonrcrérfor receirvrorb\es (],650) ........................... B -
Trade }ércreivoblesr - ﬁet - 4,7174714 .................................. -
Other receivables 997 -
Prepoyrrrnrerms ],égll 7 28
Amounts owed b;rlrsrtersidioryVﬁrrwrdertokinrgr : = B 48,21;'5] : 48;425
7,247 6,525 48,518 48,454
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

We initially recognise frade and other receivables at fair value, which is usually the original invoices amount. They are subsequently carried
af amortised cost using the effective inferest method. The carrying amount of these balances approximates fo fair value due fo the short
maturity of amounts receivable.

We provide goods to consumer and business customers, mainly on credif terms. We know that cerfain debts due to us will not be paid
through the default of a small number of customers. Because of this, we recognise an allowance for doubtful debts on initial recognition of
receivables, which is deducted from the gross carrying amount of the receivable. The allowance is calculated by reference to credit losses
expected to be incurred over the lifetime of the receivable. In estimating a loss allowance we consider historical experience and informed
credit assessment alongside other factors such as the current state of the economy and particular industry issues. We consider reasonable
and supportive information that is relevant and available without undue cost.

Once recognised, trade receivables are continuously monitored and updated. Allowances are based on our historical loss experiences for
the relevant aged category as well as forward-looking information and general economic conditions.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated and
therefore the loss allowance for frade receivables is deemed adequate. Other receivables include deposits paid to suppliers for tooling.

Gross trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Fully performing 5,320 3,500
Pastdue 690 644
Fly impaired 853 : 1,050
Trade receivables 6,863 5,194

As of 31 March 2021, trade receivables of £690,000 (2020: £644,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent hisfory of default.

As of 31 March 2021, trade receivables of £853,000 (2020: £1,050,000) were impaired and provided for in full.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
frade receivables.

Movements on the Group loss allowance for trade receivables is as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Ar T April 1,050 1,168
(Decreose}/incrérorsré \n iéss dlowance (25) - (757)
Receivables wriirirernrbrfrfrcrnlruring the year as unérorl\re;crtriglé VVVVVVVVVV (140) B ”(13767))
Exchange od{usirrrnrérrﬂrsr 77777777777777777777777 (32) - 2737
At 31 March 853 1,050

The decrease in loss allowance has been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Amounts owed to the Company by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and interest bearing.
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The carrying amounts of the Group and Company frade and other receivables except prepayments and Amounts owed by subsidiary

undertaking are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Sterling Infercompany = - 48,431 48,426
Sterlmé,,, 4396 . 31,],43 e
o Q7Q . Q3] R -
i DO,”,O,r, 905 . 1067 R -
6,280 5,141 48,431 48,426

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,685 5921 2 2

Cash at bank of £4,685,000 (2020: £5,921,000) is with financial instituions with a credit rating of A3 per Moody's rating agency.

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

CURRENT:
L ,p,d,YOb‘es 2833 - 250] B -
Other &']'X'es and s<737c7ic1| securirtry” 1294 : 394 3O - 3727
Other poyobles 608 123 %99 386
Re{und, “,G,bilny — . 206 L
Accruals and contract liabilies 1665 73 158
Group;e”ceivob\esr gruoromeerkNoTe 4) = - 6,020 - 0,0QO
7131 4,889 6,722 6,596

Confract liabilities relate to payments of £438,308 (2020: £61,648] received upfront for products where delivery is vet to take place.
Delivery is expected fo fake place over the next 3 months. Revenue of £61,648, deferred in 2020, was recognised as income in the year

ended 31 March 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

17. RIGHT OF USE LEASE LIABILITIES

The movement in the right of use lease liability over the year was as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 April 2020 -
New |éa§es 7777777777777777777 -
Inferest ééyebb 7777777777777777777 -
Repoy6é61 of \eoéé V|irc1bimiesr VVVVVVVVVV -
As at 31 March 2021 -
lease |rirorkr>i|iiy |es§ 1hon one yééf 7777777777 -
lease IViVQVBIIHy grerorirerrrihon oné Vyreor ona \ess than ﬁ\'/'e' yeors VVVVV -
lease |7irorkr)i|Hy grerorirerrrihon fivrer yéors 77777 S -
Total Liability -
Maturity analysis of contracted undiscounted cashflows is as follows:
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Lease liability less than one year 522 531 = -
lease |7irorbri|ﬁy greé}rirerrrihon oné Vyreor Ona |ess than H\'/'e' yeors ........................ 1,378 77777777 1,222 ............................. B -
lease |7i7c17b7i|ﬁy grerorirerrrihon fivrer ;/éors VVVVV .. 2,304 VVVVVVVV 2,]33 ............................. B -
o U,d,b,imy ,,,,, 4204 ,,,,,,,,, 3886 ............................... - :
Finance charges included above 0390 no47 B -
2,808 2,639 = -
18. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
R Lend,ih,g, ,ngmy oo B - - .
e SOOI B -~ - .
Loan from subsidi(rjrrr\/r Vunderfokirnrés ....................................... . N 5 ,689 ...... 5907
B RO OO B - . 689 ,,,,,,, 5907
ol Bc,’,r,rowmgs, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Il
Amounrtr a’ue for séTrTrléVmem vvﬁrhrirnr 12 moﬁfﬁé ................................... . _ . B -
Amounrtr (rjlrue for séﬁrlérmem oHVerrr 12 monﬂwg ..................................... N N 5 689 ...... 5907
- - 5,689 5907

The Company borrowings are denominated in Sterling. All intercompany borrowings are formalised by way of loan agreements. The loans
can be repaid af any time however the Company has received confirmation from its subsidiary that they will not require payment within the

next 12 months.
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The principal features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

At 31 March 2021 the UK had a £12 million Asset Based Lending facility with PNC Credit Limited and a £9 million loan facility with Phoenix
Asset Management Partners.

The £12 million facility with PNC extends until June 2023 and carries a margin of 2.5-3% over LIBOR. The PNC Facility has a fixed
and floating charge on the assefs of the Group. The Company is expected fo provide customary operational covenants fo PNC on
a monthly basis.

The Phoenix Facility is a £9 million facility with a rolling three year term and attracts inferest at a margin of 5% over LIBOR on funds drawn.
Undrawn funds aftract a non-ufilisation fee of the higher of 1% or LIBOR.

Undrawn borrowing facilities
At 31 March 2021, the Group had available £14,380,773 (2020: £14,235,284) of undrawn commitied borrowing facilities in respect

of which all conditions precedent had been met. The facility from PNC Credit Limited has limits based on the Group's asset position at any
one fime.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification and measurement

Under IFRS @ the Group classifies and measures its financial instruments as follows:

e Derivative financial instruments: classified and measured af fair value through profit or loss;
o All other financial assets: classified as receivables and measured at amortised cost; and

o All other financial liabilities: classified as other liabilities and measured at amortised cost.

Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Amortised Cost Held at Fair Value
Financial Financial Cash flow Carrying Fair
Assets liabilifies hedges valua valoe
£000 £/000 £/000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2021
"""""" 6,279 = = 6,279 - 6,279
"""""" = (3,342) = (3,342)(3,342)
- - o (48”148”
"""""" 4,685 = = 4,685 4,685
lecse liabilies = ""(2,808] = ""[2,808)”“ - (2,808)
Amortised Cost Held at Fair Value
Financial Financial Cash flow Carrying Fair
Assets Liabilities hedges value value
£'000 £/000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2020
Trordrer and other receirvrcﬂr)\es - 5,1741 o S R 5,]4] - 5,141
Trade and ofher payables - e 2 (2624
Derri;/roﬁve financial inrstrrrurmems - o . ﬂé o ﬂé - 116
Cash and cash equivalents - s, . 5921 5921
lease liablifes - - 639 o 2639 (2,639
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

The Group's policies and strategies in relation to risk and financial instruments are detailed in Note 1.

Assets Liabilities
2021 2020 2021 2020
GROUP £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Carrying values of derivative financial instruments
Forward foreign currency confracts — cash flow hedges 32 116 (513) -

The hedged forecast fransactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates during the next 12 months.
Gains and losses recognised in reserves on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2021 are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income first in the period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, which is within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

At 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the gross value of forward currency contracts was as follows:

2021 2020
’000s '000s
US Dollar 22,000 8,750

The net fair value for the forward foreign currency contracts is an asset of £32,000 (2020: £116,000 assef] and a liability of £513,000
(2020: nil) of which £481,000 net liability (2020: £116,000 assef] represents an effective hedge at 31 March 2021 and has therefore
been credited to Other Comprehensive Income.

The Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are required fo be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain
requirements sef out in the standard. No embedded derivatives have been identified.

The Company has no derivative financial instruments.

Maturity of financial liabilities

2021 2020

GROUP £'000s £'000
Less than one year 3957 3,008
Between one and five years 1,378 799
More than five years 2,304 1456
7,639 5,263

2021 2020

Intercompany Intercompany

Debt Debt

COMPANY £'000 £'000
More than five years (Note 18) 5,689 5907
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Hierarchy of financial instruments
The following tables present the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value af 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. The

fable analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
¢ Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

® Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

® Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

There were no transfers or reclassifications between Levels within the year. level 2 hedging derivatives comprise forward foreign exchange ¢
contracts and have been fair valued using forward exchange rates that are quoted in an active market. The effects of discounting are g
generally insignificant for Level 2 derivatives. <.
-
The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amount: Trade and other receivables, other current '§
financial assets, cash and cash equivalents [excluding bank overdrafts), trade and other payables. 3
Financial Instruments
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging = 32 = 32
Total assets as at 31 March 2021 = 32 = 32
Liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging - (513) - (513)
@
Total liabilities at 31 March 2021 - (513) - (513) 2
8
3
8
3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total ]
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Derivatives used for hedging - 116 - 116
Total assets as at 31 March 2020 - 116 - 116

Liabilities
Derivatives used for hedging - _ _ _

Total liabilities at 31 March 2020 - — _ _

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The exposure fo these
borrowings varies during the year due fo the seasonal nature of cash flows relafing fo sales.

In order to measure risk, floating rafe borrowings and the expected interest costs are forecast on a monthly basis and compared to budget
using management's expeciations of a reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The effect on both income and equity based on exposure to borrowings at the balance sheet date for a 1% increase in inferest rafes is £nil
[2020: £nil) before tax. A 1% fall in inferest rafes gives the same but opposite effect. 1% is considered an appropriate benchmark given the
minimum level of movement in the UK inferest rate over recent years and expeciation over the next financial year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency sensitivity in respect of financial instruments

The Group is primarily exposed to fluctuations in US Dollars, and the Euro. The following fable details how the Group's income and equity
would increase on a before tax basis, given a 10% revaluation in the respective currencies against Sterling and in accordance with IFRS 7 all
other variables remaining consfant. A 10% devaluation in the value of Sterling would have the opposite effect. The 10% change represents a
reasonably possible change in the specified foreign exchange rates in relation to Sterling.

Comprehensive Income and

Equity Sensitivity
2021 2020
£000 £000
US dollars 670 1,252
Fwos 655 : ”384
1,325 1,636

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capifal structure fo reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net (cash)/debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings as shown in the Statement of Financial Position less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the Statement of Financial Position plus net debt.

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Total borrowings [Note 18) - -
less
Total cash ondrc”orsrhr Ve;crqrurwolems Noel1s (4,685) : (592])
Net (cash) (4,685) (5921)
Toequty 38257 37005
Total capital 33,572 31,084
Gearing (14%) (19%)
20. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred fax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method.
The movement on the deferred tax account is as shown below:
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
A 1 April (1,880) (1,880) = -
P e e —— (2806] ,,,,,,, (],égo) ............................... R S

Deferred tax assefs have been recognised in respect of certain UK timing differences only. Temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax
assets have been recognised in the UK where it is probable that those assets will be recovered.
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No deferred tax is provided for tax liabilities which would arise on the distribution of profits retained by overseas subsidiaries because there
is currently no intention that such profits will be remitted.

The movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities during the year are shown below.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offsef.

Acquisition

intangibles Total
Deferred tax liabilities £'000 £'000
At 1 April 2020 150 150 .
Charge to Stctérrrrwrernrtrérfr(riomprehensive Incéfﬁé 777777777777777777777777777777777777 S g
Q
At 31 March 2021 150 150 ;—‘U
Al 1 Apiil 2019 150 150 3
Charge to Stotérrr{ernrtr(rjwaromprehensive Incér;ﬁé 777777777777777777777777777777777777 . *
At 31 March 2020 150 150
Group Company
Acquisition Short-term
intangibles Other Total incentive plan Total
Deferred tax assets £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A 1 April 2020 - 2,030 2,030 - -
Credit 1o Statement of Comprehensive Income - e 92— -
At 31 March 2021 = 2,956 2,956 = = o
At 1 April 2019 2,030 2,030 - - g
C,hq,r,g,e,,b StotemenfrQrf(rqumprehensiverVlrnrcrqrme 77777777777 - - - - §
At 31 March 2020 - 2,030 2,030 - - 3
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset
At 31 March 2021 (150) 2,956 2,806 = =
At 31 March 2020 (150) 2,030 1,880 - -
2021 2020
Recognised  Not recognised Recognised  Not recognised
GROUP £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax comprises:
Depre&rdtrion in excess of coprirbrl allowances S 2,817 461 189] - 1626
Other %erzrrﬁporory AI%Férences —UK 77777 - (11) 3,360 ”(717]) - 3032
Other %cgrﬁporory AI%Férences ;rérverseos 77777 - = 3,327 . 737,1 8727
Deferred tax asset 2,806 7148 1,880 7840

I
3
2
3
Q.
g
w
=4
g
)
(]
3
(]
3
=
©w

Hornby PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 65



Notes to the Financial Statements continved

20. DEFERRED TAX continued

2021 2020
Recognised  Not recognised Recognised  Not recognised
COMPANY £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax comprises:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (320) - (247)

The UK deferred tax asset not recognised of £3,360,000 primarily relates to unrecognised losses in Hornby Hobbies Limited of
£14,341,000 [potential deferred tax asset of £2,725,000) and Hornby PLC of £1,306,000 [potential deferred tax assef of £268,000). It
also relates to an unrecognised temporary difference of £356,000 related primarily fo share options and timing difference on the provision
for unrealised profit.

The deferred tax asset nof recognised in respect of overseas losses carried forward of £3,327,000 relates fo losses carried forward of
£1,586,000 in respect of Hornby Espana SA (potential deferred tax asset of £397,000), £2,799,000 in respect of Hornby France SAS
(potential deferred tax asset of £933,000), £1,872,000 in respect of Homby Deutschland GmbH (potential deferred tax asset of
£597,000), £3,213,000 in respect of Hornby lialia srl (potential deferred tax asset of £939,000) and £2,196,000 in respect of Hornby
America Inc (potential deferred tax asset of £461,000).

21. SHARE CAPITAL
Group and Company
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
2021 2020
Number of Number of

shares £000 shares £1000
Ordinary shares of 1p each:
A1 April 166927838 1669 125261172 1253
Issue orfworrdinory shéres H - H N 74’171,666,76766 - ”4]6
A3 March 166927838 1669 166927838 1,669

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS ('PSP’)

All Performance Share Plan ['PSP’) awards outstanding at 31 March 2021 vest only if performance conditions are met. Awards granted under
the PSP must be exercised within one year of the relevant award vesting date.

The Group operates the PSP for Executive Directors and senior executives. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nominal-
priced option, and are satisfied using market-purchased shares. The awards in previous years vest in full or in part dependent on the
satisfaction of specified performance targets.

The 2020 awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of specified performance targes.

All plans are subject to continued employment. To the extent that such shares in the above plans are awarded to employees below fair value,
a charge calculated in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” is included within other operating expenses in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. This charge for the Group amounts to £673,000 and the charge for the Company amounted to £337,000 in the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil charge for the Group and Company).
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The following table summarises the key assumptions used for grants during the year.

2021 PSP 2020 PSP
Fair Value 53.0p n/a
Options pricing m7<3”drer\rtszed 7777777777777 Block:Scholes | n/d

(Stochastic)

Share price af groﬁf Vdrétre o : 54.0p | n/d
Exercise price (o) : 1.0p | n/d
Riskfree rate (0.5%) 7777777777777777777 : 0.5% | n/d
Expected option tvrerrrrﬁr(ryreorsj 77777777777777 : 1.5 | n/d
Expected dividenarsr(rpr)rerr vear % : 0% | n/d

Assumptions on expected volatility and expected option return have been made on the basis of historical data, wherever available, for the
period corresponding with the vesting of the option. Best estimates have been used where historical data is not available in this respect. No
reasonable change in volafility would impact on the fair value of the options granfed.

23. RESERVES

Group
Capital Redemption Reserve

This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the Company.

Translation Reserve
The franslation reserve represents the foreign exchange movements arising from the translation of financial statements in foreign currencies.

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of changes in the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts that have not yet
occurred.

Other Reserves

This reserve represents historic negative goodwill arising prior fo the transition to IFRS.

Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve arises from the requirement fo value share options in existence at the fair value af the date they are
granted.

Company
Capital Redemption Reserve
This reserve records the nominal value of shares repurchased by the Company.

Translation Reserve
The translation reserve represents the foreign exchange movements arising from the translation of financial statements in foreign currencies.

Other Reserves

This reserve represents the revaluation of investments in subsidiaries as allowable under previous UK GAAP. The reserve was frozen on
transition to IFRS in 20006.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

24. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff costs for the year:
nge's' <737no| solorrirers 7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 7,514 77777777 6,867 ...................... 408 ...... : ”436
FUHOUéhgcheme ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, “84] ,,,,,,,, - - e
Shorefbroged poyrrr{ernrts (Noter 22) 673 777777777777 - 337 ...... -
SOCiOl,S,é,CU[Hy Co,s,g,, oo AR, 8 23 732 ............................ é ] ,,,,,,,, B 5,8,
Other pension costs (Note 25) mo 5 28 25
Redunﬂéﬁcy and Vcrérnrwpensotirc;ﬁ Vfor loss 'O'{' &fice 20 7777777777 50 ............................. B -
9257 8,014 834 513

The redundancy costs form part of the restructuring costs in the year classified as exceptional items.

Average monthly number of people (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Operations 76 69 = -
Sales, markefing and distrbution 83 88 B -
U B 0O B
193 191 3 3

Key management compensation:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Salaries and shortterm employee benefits 853 981 445 358
Share-based poyﬁr]rernrts S T 2 -
Other ééﬁsion coéfé 777777777777777777777777 33 25
Redunaaﬁcy and VcrcVJVrTprensoTirc;ﬁ Vfor loss Vc;fr s{fice S . 39 = -
1,562 1,053 810 383

Key management comprise the individuals involved in major strafegic decision making and includes all Group and subsidiary Directors.

A detailed numerical analysis of Directors' remuneration and share options showing the highest paid Director, number of Direcfors accruing
benefits under money purchase pension schemes, is included in the Direcfors’ Report on pages 23 to 27 and forms part of these financial
sfafements.

25. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme by way of a Stakeholder Group Personal Pension Plan set up through the Friends
Provident Insurance Group.

Alexander Forbes International is appointed as Independent Financial Adviser to work in liaison with the Group.

The level of contributions to the Group Personal Pension Plan for current members is fixed by the Group.
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The Group pension cost for the year was £411,000 (2020: £365,000) representing the actual contributions payable in the year and certain
scheme adminisfration costs. The Company pension cost for the year was £28,000 (2020: £25,000). No contributions were outstanding at

the year end of 31 March 2021.

26. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2021 2020
GROUP £'000 £'000
At 31 March capital commitments were:
Contracted for but not provided 1,847 1,845

The commitments relate fo the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

The Company does not have any capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are, from time to time, parties to legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of these proceedings and claims, either individually or in aggregate,

will have a material adverse effect upon the Group's financial position.

27. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Profit/(loss) before taxation 345 (3,395) (318) (6,063)
Interest éoyoble 1(’)9 446 | 220 - 217
Interest éoid on Leérsre |iobi|i1iersr 165 17(7)9 -
Interest Vrvreceivob\em . (3] ”(3) (]75) - (175)
Share orfrprofit of Mihority Ime;ést HOQ] kéA] | (]OQ) - (34)
Amortiséﬁon of inkrnrnrgible ossété 533 603 B
Depreciétion . 1721 2,17(7)0 B
Depreciéttion on riéht of use oééets 492 528 . — - —
Shore-Bdse poymerrrﬁs [non coéh) 673 . 337 .
|ncreosér/(Decreosrer)rin guororﬂée . S 6,020
llncreosé) in invenfrorrries : (],223) (3,277) B -
(lncreosrer]/Decreoéér in trade dﬁd other réééiv0b|es (764) 680 . (M,QAS]
Increosér/(Decreosé)rin frade dﬁd other pé\}obles . 2372 (1,058) . 7 31 17
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4,372 (3,241) 45 14,672)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continved

28. NET FUNDS RECONCILIATION

2021 2020

£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 4,685 5921
Borrowings — rebdyabié within one vear : - l -
Borrowings — rebdyéﬁié ofier one year : .
Netfunds 4685 5921
Cash and liquid investments 4,685 5921
Gross debt - vor%crnrbrlér Virrwterest ates : I
Netfunds H 4,685 - 757927]7

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Hornby Hobbies Limited purchased various items of stock for resale plus services from Oxford Diecast Limited which is part of the LCD
Enterprises Limited Group, a Company in which lyndon Davies, a director of the Company, owns a controlling 51% share and Homby PLC
the remaining 49%.

Hornby Hobbies Limited purchased services from a company called Rawnet Limited which is 100% owned by Phoenix Asset Management,
the confrolling party of the Group.

Therefore transactions between the parties are related party transactions and disclosed below:

Balance at

Transactions year end

Company ® £
Oxford Diecast Limited 233,614 -
Rawnet Limited 722,252 165,038
955,866 165,038

Phoenix Asset Management Partners who own the maijority shareholding in Hornby PLC have also provided a funding facility to the Group
([see Note 18).

There were no other contracts with the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries existing during or at the end of the financial year in which a
Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was inferested. There are no other related-party transactions.

The Company received management fees from subsidiaries of £933,000 (2020: £1,065,000), interest of £175,000 (2020: £175,000)
and incurred interest of £220,000 (2020: £217,000) on intercompany borrowings.

Hornby PLC have provided a guarantee of £6.109m against intercompany receivables in Homby Hobbies. This guarantee is included in
liabilities.
30. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

The Group is 74.66% owned by Phoenix Asset Management. Artemis Fund Managers Limited hold 16.5%. The remaining 8.84% of the
shares are widely held. As a result of these arrangements, there is no ultimate parent undertaking, and the funds managed by Phoenix Asset
Management are therefore the controlling party.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

No other significant events have occurred between the end of the reporting period and the date of signature of the Annual Report
and Accounts.
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Shareholders’ Information Service

Hornby welcomes confact with its shareholders.

If you have questions or enquiries about the Group or ifs products, please contact:

K Gould
Chief Finance officer
Hornby PLC
Westwood
Margate £
Kent CTO 4J g
www.hornby.com kS
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